
 

 

Tommy Dunn 
Chairman, District Five 

 
Brett Sanders 

V. Chairman, District Four 

PO Box 8002, Anderson, South Carolina 29622-8002 | www.andersoncountysc.org 
 
 

John B. Wright, Jr. 
District One 

 
Glenn Davis 

District Two 

Greg Elgin 
District Three 

 
Jimmy Davis 

District Six 

M. Cindy Wilson 
District Seven 

 
Renee Watts 
Clerk to Council 

 
 
 

Rusty Burns 
County Administrator 

 
 

AGENDA 
Special Presentation Meeting 

Tuesday, March 19, 2024, at 6:00 p.m. 
Historic Courthouse 
101 S. Main Street 

Anderson, South Carolina 
Chairman Tommy Dunn, Presiding 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
 
2. RESOLUTIONS/PROCLAMATIONS: 
    a. 2024-012: A Resolution congratulating the Honorable Jason P. Phillips upon winning the L.H. “Sonny” Siau 

Award of Excellence from the South Carolina Association of Auditors, Treasurers, and Tax Collectors; and 
other matters related thereto.  

All Council 
 
    b. 2024-013: A Resolution to honor and recognize Celina Weems and Thomas Watson for their award-winning 

work in preserving and transforming the Historic Pelzer Presbyterian Church into Lebby St. Wedding Chapel & 
Events; and other matters related thereto. 

Hon. Cindy Wilson 
 
    c. 2024-014: A Resolution congratulating the Powdersville High School Boys Basketball team on winning the 

Class AAA State Championship for the first time in school history; and other matters related thereto. 
 

Hon. Jimmy Davis 
 
 
3. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

 
AGENDA 

ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING 

Tuesday, March 19, 2024, at 6:30 p.m. 
Historic Courthouse 
101 S. Main Street 

Anderson, South Carolina 
Chairman Tommy Dunn, Presiding 

 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER  
 
 
2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE                                                              Hon. Brett Sanders 
 
 



 
 
Anderson County Council Meeting Agenda, March 19, 2024 
 
Page 2 

 

   
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES                                                                                                         February 6, 2024,  
                                                                                                Minutes not received February 20, 2024, March 5, 2024   
 

 
4. CITIZENS COMMENTS                                                                                                        Agenda Matters Only 
                                                                                                                                  THREE-MINUTE TIME LIMIT 
   
 
5. ORDINANCE THIRD READING: 
    a. 2024-005: An Ordinance to lease real property to Hope Missions of the Upstate; and other matters related 

thereto. (PUBLIC HEARING THREE MINUTE TIME LIMIT) 
Mr. Rusty Burns (allotted 5 minutes) 

 
 
    b. 2024-011: An Ordinance finding that Homeland Park Water District, South Carolina, may issue not exceeding   

$1,250,000 of general obligation bonds in one or more series; to authorize Homeland Park Water Commission 
to issue such bonds and to provide for the publication of notice of the said finding authorization; and other 
matters related thereto. (PUBLIC HEARING THREE MINUTE TIME LIMIT) 

 
Mr. Rusty Burns (allotted 5 minutes) 

 
 

6. ORDINANCE SECOND READING:  
    a. 2024-012: An Ordinance authorizing (1) The Execution and delivery of a first amendment to an existing fee in 

lieu of tax and incentive agreement by and between Anderson County, South Carolina, and a company presently 
identified as Project Blue Starr, to effect certain modifications thereto with respect to certain property now or to 
be hereafter located in the county; and (2) other matters relating thereto. [Project Blue Starr] 

 
Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 

 
 

7. ORDINANCE FIRST READING: NONE 
 
 
8.  RESOLUTIONS: NONE 

 
 
9. CHANGE ORDERS/BID APPROVALS: 
     a. Bid #24-022 ACTC #135, 136, & 138 

Mr. Rusty Burns 
 
 
10. ROAD ACCEPTANCE INTO COUNTY INVENTORY 
      a. Parkview Glen Subdivision Phases II, III, IV-District 7                                                              Mr. Matt Hogan 
         Walking Stick Way 
          Red Canoe Lane 
          Water Gap Drive 
  
 
11. REQUEST BY COUNCIL: 
      a. Anderson Area Clemson Club-All Districts 
      b. International Network of Michelin Cities 
 
 
 



 
 
Anderson County Council Meeting Agenda, March 19, 2024 
 
Page 3 

 

   
 

 
12. ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT: 
      a. Building and Codes Report       
      b. Budget Transfers 
      c. Paving 
      d. Special Projects 
 
 
 
13. CITIZENS COMMENTS                                                                                                       Non-Agenda Matters 
                                                                                                                                  THREE-MINUTE TIME LIMIT 
 
 
14. REMARKS FROM COUNCIL 
 
 
 
15. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
Anyone who requires an auxiliary aid or service for effective communication, or a 

modification of policies or procedures in order to participate in this program, service 
or activity please contact the office of the program, service or activity as soon as 

possible but no later than 24 hours before the scheduled event. For assistance, please 
contact the Clerk to Council at (864) 260-1036. 



RESOLUTION 2024-012 
A RESOLUTION CONGRATULATING THE HONORABLE JASON P. PHILLIPS 
UPON WINNING THE L.H. “SONNY” SIAU AWARD OF EXCELLENCE FROM 
THE SOUTH CAROLINA ASSOCIATION OF AUDITORS, TREASURERS, AND 
TAX COLLECTORS; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

 
Whereas The Honorable Jason P. Phillips, first elected as our Anderson County Treasurer in 
2004, is well-known across the County and throughout South Carolina always being on the 
leading edge of his profession; and 
 
Whereas Mr. Phillips’ accomplishments as our Treasurer have been many including introducing, 
in 2005, online debit and credit card payments and, in 2010, over-the-counter debit and credit 
card payments, having processed several hundred thousand transactions since then; working with 
Council to pass Ordinance 2011-003 providing for installment payment of real property taxes; 
partnering with SCDMV to become one of the first counties in South Carolina to print decals for 
vehicle renewals; and in coordination with the County Auditor and County Assessor, established 
“Third Thursday” meetings with school district finance administrators to communicate property 
tax information for preparation of budgets and financial statements more effectively; and 

 
    Whereas Mr. Phillips, a lifelong Starr resident and Crescent graduate who holds a 

Bachelor of Science in Financial Management and Master of Professional Accountancy 
from Clemson University, is the embodiment of a public servant and man of great 
integrity; and 

 
 Whereas Mr. Phillips has received SCATT’s Sonny Siau Award of Excellence “in 

acknowledgment of [his] many years of dedication and loyalty to the Association and the people 
of the State of South Carolina as a tireless proponent of fair property taxation, a faithful friend 
and comrade, a true statesman. Personifying Sonny’s passion for excellence in public service,” 

 
 Now, therefore, be it resolved, in a meeting duly assembled this nineteenth day of March 2024, that the Anderson 

County Council congratulates our County Treasurer Jason Phillips for receiving this prestigious statewide recognition 
and thanks Mr. Phillips and his staff for the hard work they do every day to serve the citizens of Anderson County. 

 
FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 

 
 
 ________________        __________________  _____________                ____________ 
 Tommy Dunn, Chairman John B. Wright, Jr.  Glenn Davis   Greg Elgin 
 District Five   District One   District Two   District Three 
 
                                                    ____________                              ______________                _________________     

                Brett Sanders, Vice-Chairman           Jimmy Davis                                    M. Cindy Wilson 
                 District Four   District Six   District Seven 
    ATTEST:  
     
    _______________                     ________________ 
    Rusty Burns              Renee Watts 
    County Administrator                Clerk to Council 



RESOLUTION 2024-013 
 

A RESOLUTION TO HONOR AND RECOGNIZE CELINA WEEMS AND 
THOMAS WATSON FOR THEIR AWARD-WINNING WORK IN PRESERVING 
AND TRANSFORMING THE HISTORIC PELZER PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH 
INTO LEBBY ST. WEDDING CHAPEL & EVENTS; AND OTHER MATTERS 
RELATED THERETO. 

 
 

Whereas when Celina Weems and Thomas Watson purchased the Pelzer Presbyterian Church 
in 2020, which had been sitting vacant for years and was in a state of disrepair, they set about 
with determination and resourcefulness to revitalize this historic landmark built by Captain 
Smyth and Pelzer Mill in 1896, the only original church left standing in Pelzer, “to restore this 
church to its glory, to something Pelzer could be proud of,” and 
 
Whereas since 1995, the South Carolina Department of Archives and History, Preservation 
South Carolina, and the Office of the Governor have recognized exceptional accomplishments 
in the preservation, rehabilitation, and interpretation of our architectural and cultural heritage 
with a series of statewide awards; and 

 
    Whereas even without outside funding, Weems and Watson successfully navigated myriad 

logistical and practical challenges to rehabilitate and preserve the Church, culminating 
in their receiving the 2023 Preservation Honor Award from the Governor of South 
Carolina for their extraordinary, distinguished restoration work; and 

 
 Now, therefore, be it resolved, in a meeting duly assembled this nineteenth day of March 

2024, that the Anderson County Council congratulates Celina Weems and Thomas Watson 
on their statewide recognition and thanks her for her tireless work in preserving an Anderson 
County landmark for future generations. 

 
 

FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 
 
 
 
 ________________        __________________  _____________                ____________ 
 Tommy Dunn, Chairman John B. Wright, Jr.  Glenn Davis   Greg Elgin 
 District Five   District One   District Two   District Three 
 
 
                                                    ____________                              ______________                _________________     

                Brett Sanders, Vice-Chairman           Jimmy Davis                                    M. Cindy Wilson 
                 District Four   District Six   District Seven 
    ATTEST:  
     
 
    _______________                     ________________ 
    Rusty Burns              Renee Watts 
    County Administrator                Clerk to Council 



RESOLUTION 2024-014 
 

A RESOLUTION CONGRATULATING THE POWDERSVILLE HIGH 
SCHOOL BOYS BASKETBALL TEAM ON WINNING THE CLASS AAA 
STATE CHAMPIONSHIP FOR THE FIRST TIME IN SCHOOL 
HISTORY; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

 
Whereas Powdersville High School is a collaborative learning community 
committed to graduating students empowered to be lifelong learners who reach 
their highest potential and embody The PATRIOT Way—Perseverant, Altruistic, 
Tactful, Reflective, Involved, Optimistic, Team-Oriented; and 

 
Whereas on March 2nd, the Powdersville High School Boys Basketball Team played 
Darlington High School for the Class AAA state championship in Florence, leading 
Darlington from start to finish and winning by a final score of 53-47; and  

 
Whereas Coach Austin Anderson told media following the game, “We were leading 
the whole game, but it never felt comfortable. We did a good job of holding them 
off at the end. I think we were just going to do whatever it took to win;” and 
 
Whereas down the stretch Caden Kreeger and Hayden Assemian made 
crucial baskets and Quan Burton hit two clutch free throws to secure the win 
with Jaleel McGee totaling 18 points to lead the Patriots with Assemian 
adding 12 points and 11 rebounds in a physical, passionate performance that 
will not be soon forgotten in the hallways of Powdersville High School and 
beyond; 
 
Now, therefore, be it resolved this nineteenth day of March 2024, in a meeting duly 
assembled, that the Anderson County Council hereby recognizes the players, coaches, and parents of the 
Powdersville High School Boys Basketball Team, as well as the wider Powdersville community, for their 
athletic achievements and for bringing such positive statewide recognition to our community. Go 
Patriots! 

 
 FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 
 
 
 ________________        ________________  ________________  ________________ 
 Tommy Dunn, Chairman John B. Wright, Jr.  Glenn Davis   Greg Elgin 
 County Council  District One   District Two   District Three 
 

________________               ________________  ________________   
Brett Sanders, Vice-Chairman          Jimmy Davis                                     M. Cindy Wilson 

                 District Four   District Six   District Seven  
    ATTEST:  
 
     
    ________________                   ________________ 
    Rusty Burns              Renee Watts 
    County Administrator                Clerk to Council 



State of South Carolina   )

County  of     Anderson   )

ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL
 

SPECIAL PRESENTATION MEETING

FEBRUARY 6, 2024

IN ATTENDANCE:
TOMMY DUNN, CHAIRMAN
JOHN WRIGHT 
GLENN DAVIS
GREG ELGIN
BRETT SANDERS
JIMMY DAVIS
CINDY WILSON

ALSO PRESENT:
LEON HARMON
JORDAN THAYER
RENEE WATTS
    



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - February 6, 2024
2

1 TOMMY DUNN:   At this time I’d
2 like to call the February 6th special presentation
3 meeting to order at this time.  I’d like to welcome
4 each and every one of y’all here tonight, and thank
5 y’all for coming.  
6 We’ve got a couple of items in this part of our
7 agenda, won’t be 2(a) and 2(b).  One is out of town and
8 the other one is feeling under the weather.  Ms.
9 Christopher is out of town and Mr. Pinson is not
10 feeling well, so we’re going to not do those two.
11 And the next one we’re going to do -- first one
12 we’re going to do will be 2(c):
13 A PROCLAMATION DESIGNATING FEBRUARY 2024 AS BLACK
14 HISTORY MONTH IN ANDERSON COUNTY.  It’s from all
15 Council members and I’d like to ask Councilman Glenn
16 Davis if he would read this in and make a motion
17 GLENN DAVIS:  Thank you, Mr.
18 Chairman.  This is a Proclamation Designating February
19 2024 as Black History Month in Anderson County.
20 WHEREAS, during Black History Month, we celebrate
21 the many achievements and contributions made by African
22 Americans to our economic, cultural, spiritual, and
23 political development; and,
24 WHEREAS, Black History Month grew out of the
25 establishment of Negro History Week by Carter G.
26 Woodson and the Association for the Study of African
27 American Life and History; and,
28 WHEREAS, we celebrate this year’s Black History
29 Month theme of “African Americans and the Arts,”
30 shining a light on visual and performing arts,
31 literature, fashion, folklore, language, film, music,
32 architecture, culinary and other forms of cultural
33 expression in which African American influence has been
34 paramount; and
35 WHEREAS, Black History Month provides an
36 opportunity for all Americans to reflect on the rich
37 history and achievements of people of African descent;
38 and
39 WHEREAS, the Anderson County Council sets aside
40 this special time to acknowledge African Americans in
41 Anderson County, past and present;
42 NOW, THEREFORE, the Anderson County Council does
43 hereby proclaim the month of February 2024 as BLACK
44 HISTORY MONTH and encourages all citizens to create a
45 world that is more just, peaceful, and prosperous for
46 all.
47 PROCLAIMED this 6th day of February 2024.
48 And I put that in the form of a motion, sir.
49 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  Have a
50 motion by Mr. Davis and second by Ms. Wilson.  Any



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - February 6, 2024
3

1 discussion?  Hearing and seeing none, all in favor of
2 the motion, show of hands.  All opposed like sign. 
3 Show the motion carries unanimously.
4 We’re going to move on now to item number 3, a
5 presentation Milky Way Farm, Ms. Barham.  
6 Help her out there, Jordan.  Wherever she wants to
7 go; wherever it’s good for her.
8 IRIS BARHAM:   It doesn’t matter to
9 me.  I’m Iris Barham, fourth generation here at Milky
10 Way Farm in Starr, South Carolina.  We moved to
11 Anderson County in 1987.  My parents saw this as a
12 place to raise their children and grow their business. 
13 And I’m proud to say that every drop of milk that we
14 produce at Milky Way Farm now is sold on our label here
15 in the county in Ingles and a couple of other
16 locations.  I have some that I’ll give to Ms. Renee
17 over there and y’all can decide how you split the milk. 
18 But we want to say thank you for your commitment to
19 agriculture as we continue to have people find our
20 great state and move in here.  We’ve got to make a
21 commitment of keeping our fertile ag ground in food
22 production to feed our populations.
23 My brother and I both grew up in 4H and FFA and I’m
24 also here tonight, I’ve served on the Clemson Spring
25 Dairy Show Committee, and in March we will hold a very
26 large event at the T. Ed Garrison Arena.  And the sole
27 purpose this event is in South Carolina is because of
28 the Garrison Arena and the fact that they have a
29 milking parlor.  That’s not something a lot of ag
30 facilities have; and so we’re thankful for that.
31 And I have the agenda here, and I would like to
32 welcome you all to attend and see the state 4H and FAA
33 youth compete in those dairy activities.  Because of
34 350 cattle from eight states coming in, we put on a
35 competition that’s very similar to what they’ll have on
36 the national level.  And we’re pretty proud of that.
37 So I’m going to leave all that over there.  And we
38 just appreciate what y’all do for us.
39 TOMMY DUNN:   Ma’am, we appreciate
40 you and what y’all do for us and for the citizens of
41 Anderson County and the state.  I know your father has
42 been on the Farm Bureau board for years, and your
43 brother was, too.  Appreciate what all y’all do in the
44 community.
45 Anyone else have anything?
46 CINDY WILSON:   May I?
47 TOMMY DUNN:   Ms. Wilson.
48 CINDY WILSON:   Thank you.  Welcome,
49 and thank you for Milky Way.  I buy some of your
50 products almost every week.  My mother, growing up, had



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - February 6, 2024
4

1 Jersey cows for her 4H project.  And when she and my
2 father married, they started the dairy with Jersey
3 cows.  There are not many Jersey cow herds in this
4 state.  They have the better butter fat production.  We
5 in this county are so blessed to have at least the one
6 dairy and Callaham’s and Garrison Farms, the different
7 orchards and other farming operations.  Anderson County
8 is top in the state for beef production, I think top
9 for goats and second for horses.  The list goes on. 
10 We’re blessed.  At least if everything else goes
11 haywire, folks in Anderson County will be able to eat
12 well.  
13 IRIS BARHAM:  I agree.
14 CINDY WILSON:   Thank you very much.
15 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you. 
16 Appreciate it.  Mr. Elgin.
17 GREG ELGIN:  I want to say,
18 again, thank you, what they’ve said.  I know to our
19 area, the Starr area, that y’all are very giving for
20 our community, being the stuff at Starr Fire Department
21 with, of course, some stores, local stores down there,
22 we appreciate what y’all do for the community.  We
23 really do.  Appreciate y’all being there.  And like Ms.
24 Wilson said, I know, we can feed our own if we need to. 
25 So thank y’all very much for being here and what you
26 do.
27 IRIS BARHAM:  We appreciate that
28 very much.  Thank you.
29 TOMMY DUNN:   Appreciate you. 
30 Thank y’all.
31 That’s going to conclude this part of the Council
32 meeting.  We’re going to adjourn.  We’ll convene back
33 at 6:30 to start our regular Council meeting.
34  
35 (SPECIAL PRESENTATION MEETING ADJOURNED AT 6:08 P.M.)



5

State of South Carolina   )

County  of     Anderson   )

ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL
 

COUNTY COUNCIL MEETING

FEBRUARY 6, 2024

IN ATTENDANCE:
TOMMY DUNN, CHAIRMAN
JOHN WRIGHT
GLENN DAVIS 
GREG ELGIN
BRETT SANDERS
JIMMY DAVIS
CINDY WILSON

ALSO PRESENT:
LEON HARMON
JORDAN THAYER
RENEE WATTS



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - February 6, 2024
6

1 TOMMY DUNN:   At this time I’d
2 like to call the regular Anderson County Council
3 meeting of February the 6th to order.  I’d like to
4 welcome each and every one of y’all here today.  Thank
5 y’all for coming and taking place and part in your
6 county local government.
7 At this time I’d like to ask Councilman Jimmy Davis
8 if he would lead us in prayer and the pledge of
9 allegiance.  If we’d all rise, please.
10 INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE BY JIMMY DAVIS
11 TOMMY DUNN:   As we get started I
12 hope everyone will please keep in mind the Burns
13 family.  Mr. Burns is not here tonight; attending to
14 some personal matters.  We’ve got Mr. Harmon filling in
15 for him, and Mr. Thayer filling in for Mr. Harmon.  So
16 glad to have y’all here sitting in.
17 At this time we’re going to move on to item number
18 3, approval of the December 19, 2023 minutes.  Are
19 there any corrections or changes to be made to those? 
20 Do we have a motion to move these forward?  Motion Ms.
21 Wilson.  Have a second?
22 GLENN DAVIS:  Second.
23 TOMMY DUNN:   Second by Mr. Glenn
24 Davis.  All in favor of the motion, show of hands.  All
25 opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
26 unanimously.
27 We’re going to move on, any corrections or changes
28 to be made to the January 2nd, 2024 minutes?  Hearing
29 none and seeing none, do we have a motion to move these
30 forward?
31 CINDY WILSON:   So moved.
32 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion by Ms. Wilson
33 to move forward.  Do we have a second?
34 GLENN DAVIS:  Second.
35 TOMMY DUNN:   Second by Councilman
36 Glenn Davis.  All in favor of the motion, show of
37 hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
38 unanimously.
39 For the record, we have not received January the
40 16th, 2024 minutes at this time.  
41 At this time we’re going to move on to item number
42 4, citizens comments.  As Mr. Harmon calls your name,
43 this first go around is on agenda items only.  You’ve
44 got three minutes.  When Mr. Harmon calls your name,
45 please step to the mic, repeat your name and district
46 for the record where we can keep it in our record.  And
47 address the chair, please.  
48 Mr. Harmon.
49 LEON HARMON:  Mr. Chairman, the
50 first speaker is Sarah Lyons.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - February 6, 2024
7

1 SARAH LYONS:  I am Sarah Lyons. 
2 I'm from District 6.  I reside in the Mill Village in
3 Piedmont and I'm here on behalf of the Piedmont
4 Community Alliance.  Piedmont is a historic mill
5 community that is experiencing unprecedented growth
6 that has not been seen since its inception.  We are
7 witnessing degradation of our natural resources and a
8 loss of rural community character.  
9 The Piedmont Community Alliance was formed in 2023
10 by a few community members who volunteer their time and
11 has a mission to cultivate community and a sense of
12 place while preserving our unique identity and
13 abundance of natural resources.  
14 The Alliance received state nonprofit status in
15 December of 2023, and we are working to acquire federal
16 nonprofit status.  These funds are needed for
17 professional services associated with the Alliance in
18 keeping with current bylaws and other legal services
19 that the alliance does not have the professional
20 expertise to perform.  The Community Alliance benefits
21 and will serve Anderson County residents that are
22 currently part of these efforts.  Individuals that live
23 in all council districts are a part of this historical
24 preservation, serving as volunteers, property owners
25 and advisory members, as well as board of directors
26 members and family members representing their
27 ancestors.  
28 With your support in acquiring federal nonprofit
29 status, we will have the opportunity to apply for
30 federal grants that the community will witness the
31 benefits of firsthand.  
32 Thank you for your time and consideration.  
33 DAN HARVELL:  Thank you.  
34 Mr. Harmon. 
35 LEON HARMON:  Next speaker is
36 Jessica Spearman.  
37 JESSICA SPEARMAN:  Good evening.  Thank
38 you guys for allowing me to speak.  My name is Jessica
39 Spearman.  I'm a lifelong Anderson County resident
40 residing in District 6.  A mother of four that has
41 chosen to raise my children in this county.  Some of my
42 best memories from childhood are within the Anderson
43 County Public Library in Piedmont, South Carolina.  
44 I learned to read in that building.  For all of my
45 41 years in Anderson County, we have enjoyed the Public
46 Library system from Honea Path all the way to
47 Williamston.  I was concerned with one of the item
48 agenda -- one of the agenda items set forth, adding two
49 additional council members to the library board.  I see
50 that our library is a lively and bright spot in our



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - February 6, 2024
8

1 community.  And I would love to understand the sudden
2 additions to the board as it seems to be political in
3 nature.  As we are aware, our library system is a non-
4 partisan entity and should remain as such.  Recently,
5 our public schools in Anderson County have come under
6 attack for political theater to the detriment of our
7 community.  These theatrics are to create division in
8 our community that do not exist and are costly to our
9 public systems.  This financial burden gets passed on
10 to the taxpayers.  
11 I would implore the Council to consider if this is
12 a viable solution and follow our legal principles
13 within our county.  Also, I want you to understand the
14 detriment that harm to our Public Library System would
15 do.  I would hope to leave Anderson County as a much
16 better community than -- for my children than what I
17 was even raised in, or that my fifth great grandfather
18 David Spearman had.  And I would really enjoy -- or
19 really like for you guys to understand how important it
20 is to our community to keep our library nonpartisan. 
21 Thank you.
22 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Harmon. 
23 LEON HARMON:  Next speaker is Eric
24 Childs.  
25 ERIC CHILDS:  Good evening.  My
26 name is Eric Childs.  I'm a resident of Anderson
27 County.  I was raised just across the river in
28 Elberton.  I left there at 18 to serve my country and I
29 settled here after I got out.  Moved back to the area. 
30 I decided to stay here and raise my family in this
31 county.  It’s a good place.  
32 I grew up going to the library as a small child. 
33 It was the safest place in the school for a small kid
34 that got picked on.  You wouldn’t imagined it now with
35 my stature, but I was little and got picked on a lot. 
36 And I could find solace in books.  And honestly, I
37 think that should be a thing that every child is
38 offered, regardless of -- regardless of what minority
39 they may exist in, or whether they’re -- whatever their
40 race is, or religion and everything like that.  Like
41 the lady before me said, the library should be
42 nonpartisan.  
43 Unfortunately, that Ordinance 2024-010 seems to be
44 an attempt to gerrymander the library board.  Alexander
45 Hamilton referenced in the Federalist papers about
46 factions.  It seems to be a push to make a particular
47 faction a majority.  It would be politicizing of the
48 library board and could lead to censorship and
49 oppression of minority forces.  I personally didn't
50 serve to have others dictate how we live here. 



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - February 6, 2024
9

1 Politicizing the library board is not going to be the
2 way to go.  Thank you for your time.
3 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Harmon.
4 LEON HARMON:  Next speaker is
5 Elizabeth Kellner.  
6 ELIZABETH KELLNER:  Thank you for the
7 opportunity to speak tonight.  My name is Elizabeth
8 Kellner.  I live in District 1.  I’ve lived in Anderson
9 for about 10 years.  I'm speaking tonight in response
10 to the possibility of an amendment that will add two at
11 large members to the Anderson County Library Board of
12 Trustees.  
13 I don't know the motivation behind this proposal. 
14 I'm concerned, however, because other boards have used
15 similar amendments to politicize schools in public
16 libraries.  If there’s any place in our community that
17 should be above politics, is our Public Library.  It
18 should represent and serve all citizens, regardless of
19 who they vote for, or even if they vote.  
20 I'm not sure how many of you are frequent patrons
21 of our library.  If you're not, I encourage you to
22 visit the librIry branch in your community and to get
23 to know the staff.  They are incredible.  They work
24 tirelessly to try and meet the needs of a very diverse
25 population.  And I think they're very successful at
26 doing that.  
27 If the purpose of this amendment you are
28 considering is to force the library to cater to a
29 particular political viewpoint, or if this amendment
30 will in anyway undermine the work of our library staff,
31 I hope you'll vote no.  If you choose to vote yes, I
32 expect you to explain your motivation for adding the at
33 large members.  I expect you to explain how these at
34 large members will be chosen.  And I expect you to
35 allow any interested citizens an equal opportunity to
36 fill these positions.  I, for one, would be very
37 interested in serving.  Thank you.  
38 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Harmon.
39 LEON HARMON:  Mr. Chairman, no one
40 else is signed up.  
41 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you, Mr.
42 Harmon.
43 We’re going to move on to item number 5, the Soil
44 and Water Conservation update by Mr. Copeland?  
45 Mr. Thayer, would you mind helping him get up there
46 to the lectern.  Mr. Thayer, there’s a reason Mr.
47 Harmon wanted you to sit right there.
48 TOM GARRISON:  Mr. Chairman, County
49 Council members, thank you for this opportunity.  My
50 name is Tom Garrison.  I'm chairman of the Conservation



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - February 6, 2024
10

1 District.  I'm working on my 44th year I believe, on
2 the Conservation board.  And we've made this
3 presentation to County Council a good many years ago. 
4 And I believe the only ones who are still hanging
5 around is Ms. Wilson and myself.  So it's been quite a
6 long time since we've presented our report to you and
7 what we do, and it’s a very valuable and informative
8 report.  And I’m going to turn it over now to Alex
9 Kostik, who will introduce our program.  
10 ALEX KOSTIK:  Honorable Council
11 members, thank you for having us here at night.  We
12 really appreciate it.  Tonight, we're here to share the
13 achievements we’ve accomplished over the past several
14 years that have been made possible through the generous
15 support of the Council.  
16 Allow me to introduce the individuals representing
17 our organization tonight; Commissioners, Jay Copelan,
18 and Tom Garrison and myself, District Manager Pamela
19 Richey, Anaston Porter, our Education Coordinator.  And
20 also with us tonight from the Natural Resources
21 Conservation Service is District Conservationist, Brian
22 Stoddard.  I'd like to let Anaston and Brian come up
23 and share some of our accomplishments that we've made
24 over the last year and show y’all what we've been doing
25 in the county.  Thank y’all.
26 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  
27 ANASTON PORTER:  All right.  Thank
28 you, Council.  And thank you, Alex, for introducing us
29 and Tom for introducing us.  I'd like to share a couple
30 of things that the District has been working on over
31 the past couple of years.  We're very thankful for your
32 support from the Council and the county.  We could not
33 do what we do without you guys.  So thank you.
34 I would like to point your attention to an annual
35 report that was handed out; it looks like this.  And if
36 anybody wants a copy of it, they're welcome to come get
37 one from us.  But if you would, there's a green sheet
38 in there that has some numbers that I'd like to share
39 with you if you’ll open it to the first page.  
40 This sheet of paper explains our growth and
41 outreach and education programs from the past four
42 years starting in 2020, which includes an adult
43 education and K through 12th grade programs.  Specific
44 programs can be seen in the annual report as well.  So
45 if you would like to know what those programs were,
46 you're welcome to look through those later.  The
47 Council was very generous enough to give us an increase
48 in support in 2020.  That skyrocketed our education
49 programs.  You can see that once established, our
50 outreach numbers doubled each year with those numbers. 



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - February 6, 2024
11

1 Additionally, we have had four significant impacts
2 in the county over the last year, supporting about 13
3 public schools directly served through our programs,
4 three homeschool groups, eight annual education
5 contests mini grant and scholarships, 28 new certified
6 SC adopt a stream volunteers and 19 new partnerships
7 throughout the county.  So I just want you to know that
8 your impacts have been very grateful to Anderson Soil
9 and Water.  And our District runs on that county
10 support.  So without it, we would not be able to see
11 the exponential growth.
12 In the future, the future and health of our local
13 soil and water starts with the basic understanding of
14 its importance.  So thank you so much for your time. 
15 And I would like to give the floor to Mr. Brian
16 Stoddard with NRCS to share a few things.  
17 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  
18 BRIAN STODDARD:  Thank you very much. 
19 I appreciate so much the chance to talk with you for a
20 few minutes.  As Anaston said, I'm Brian Stoddard.  I'm
21 the federal partner.  I’m the District Conservationist
22 for Anderson County.  I'm employed by the Natural
23 Resources Conservation Service, which is a division of
24 the US Department of Agriculture.  
25 I'd like to call your attention to the blue sheet. 
26 We -- I was asked by the commissioners to establish a
27 statement of economic impact.  So you can see some
28 numbers and see the impact that our our office’s
29 presence has in partnership with the Soil and Water
30 Conservation District here.  Oftentimes, I'm asked what
31 do you do for a living?  And I like analogies.  So my
32 analogy is from the medical field, everybody knows what
33 a doctor does.  If you don't feel well, you call the
34 doctor, you go for a visit, he asks you questions, he
35 diagnoses you, he come up with a treatment plan.  Well,
36 we follow that model.  So if you have an ag -- if an
37 agricultural producer has issues with their operations,
38 they can call us.  
39 Now here's where it's different, we'll make a house
40 call.  But we go to the farm, we meet with the folks,
41 we ask questions, we discuss their plans, and we come
42 up with a treatment plan.  And we work with the folks
43 to try and improve their operation.  Now, how does that
44 look?  We -- our treatment plan is comprised of
45 conservation practices, is the terminology that we use. 
46 And that can be a fence that excludes cows from stream. 
47 It can be working with a poultry producer to install
48 more efficient lighting and save power.  It can be
49 working with a vegetable grower to install a more
50 efficient irrigation system.  We can work with forest



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - February 6, 2024
12

1 landowner.  So we encompass all aspects of any ag or
2 forestry operation.  
3 So I have some numbers here for you that show the
4 economic impact of our, you know, our vehicles, our
5 office space, our salary.  And I'm one of a staff of
6 three.  So we're, you know, we're working hard every
7 day, stretched pretty thin, but we do the best we can. 
8 When a client decides they want to pursue some of these
9 conservation practices, that's the second half of this
10 blue sheet I have for you.  You see some of the
11 programs that we offer.  So we do offer a chance for
12 folks to apply to receive some assistance to apply
13 these improvements that they want to do.  And you see
14 the numbers there.  I think -- I'm very proud of it, I
15 think is very significant.  Now these numbers are from
16 the current Farm Bill, which was enacted in 2018.  It
17 took effect in 2019.  So I thought it made sense.  And
18 since this is how we think of it, we're working under
19 the Farm Bill, which is the legislation that enacts
20 these programs.  And so I thought it made sense to give
21 you the five year total.  
22 I think it's not insignificant to say $16 million
23 impact has come into the county through our work.  And
24 that leads me to the main point, though, of what I want
25 to say and why I want you to know these numbers.  Our
26 presence here is dependent upon the invitation of the
27 Soil and Water Conservation District.  We operate under
28 a memorandum of understanding that’s enacted
29 nationally, but it's -- it is signed at the state level
30 and each county signs this agreement and in effect
31 invites the federal partner to the community to work. 
32 Without that invitation it’s very shaky whether we
33 would be able to be in the community.  So I like
34 analogies, as I said, the Soil and Water Conservation
35 District is the conduit through which that $16 million
36 flowed to this community.  So without their
37 partnership, we don't have a means to be here.  That's
38 the main point that I wanted to express to you all.  
39 The needs are great.  We're very busy.  We work
40 hard.  We're very proud of what we do.  And I think
41 we're having an awesome impact in this community.  And
42 I'm just tickled to death to be here.  
43 So, with that, I will turn it back over.  I think,
44 Alex, do you want to have some closing remarks?  
45 ALEX KOSTIK:  Again, we would just
46 like to extend our gratitude for your invaluable time
47 here this evening.  We hope that the council will
48 consider our organization in the upcoming budget and
49 allowing for an increase in financial support from the
50 county.  With your continued support, we can only



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - February 6, 2024
13

1 continue to grow our district and make Anderson a
2 better place for soil and water conservation.  
3 If you've got any questions, we'd be happy to
4 answer them.  If you'd like to reach out to us at a
5 later point we'd love to have you at a district meeting
6 or one of our events coming up here in the future. 
7 Thank you all.  
8 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you. 
9 Appreciate what all y'all do for the county.  Thank
10 y’all very much.
11 We will move on to number 6, third readings, we
12 have none.
13 We will go to 7(a) ordinance second reading.
14 Be ordinance 7(a), 2024-003, an ordinance to amend
15 Ordinance number 99-004 of the Anderson County Zoning
16 as adopted July 20, 1999 by amending the Anderson
17 County Official Zoning Map to rezone 1.5 +/- acres from
18 Residential Agricultural to Rural Commercial District
19 on a parcel of land, identified as address in the Three
20 and Twenty Precinct shown in Deed Reference 12274 33.
21 The parcel further identified as TMS #165-00-07-008. 
22 This is in District 4. 
23 We’ll go into a public hearing at this time. 
24 Anyone wishing to speak to this matter for or against,
25 please step forward and state your name and district
26 and address the chair.  You have three minutes.  Public
27 hearing.  Seeing and hearing none, the public hearing
28 will be closed.  Do we have a motion to move this
29 forward?
30 BRETT SANDERS:   So moved.
31 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr. Sanders;
32 second Ms. Wilson.  Are there any discussion?  I see
33 Ms. Hunter hiding over there.  You got anything to say,
34 Ms. Hunter?  You good?  Okay.  Anybody else got
35 anything?  All in favor of the motion, show of hands. 
36 All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
37 unanimously.
38 Moving on to item number 7(b), 2024-006, second
39 reading, an Ordinance ---
40 JOHN WRIGHT:  Mr. Chairman?
41 TOMMY DUNN:   Yep.
42 JOHN WRIGHT:  If I could, I’d like
43 to recuse myself from items 7(b) and 7(c).  Although I
44 was not involved in this transaction, a member of our
45 firm was.  So I’d like to recuse myself from 7(b) and
46 (c).
47 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.
48 JOHN WRIGHT:  Thank you.
49 TOMMY DUNN:   Moving on to item
50 number 7(b), 2024-006, an Ordinance authorizing the



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - February 6, 2024
14

1 execution and delivery of a fee in lieu of tax
2 agreement and special source credit agreement by and
3 between Anderson County, South Carolina and a company
4 or companies known to the county at this time as
5 Project Turkey, with respect to certain economic
6 development property in the county, whereby such
7 property will be subject to certain payments in lieu of
8 taxes, and whereby project/company will be provided
9 certain credits in related qualified infrastructure;
10 and providing for related matters.  Project Turkey.
11 Mr. Nelson.
12 BURRISS NELSON:  Mr. Chairman,
13 members of Council, an investment company is punchasing
14 an existing building, fairly new building, as well as
15 some additional land with the potential of building
16 another building, 2000 square feet.  Anticipated
17 capital investment thirty-six million three hundred
18 thousand.  Of course, this is speculative with no jobs
19 creation.  However, the existing building has the
20 potential of creating currently another 200 jobs.  So
21 it’s moving forward really as a manufacturing operating
22 and would be leased to this other company.
23 But taxes paid in 2022 were $21,000.  Anticipated
24 new property tax would be 50,000.  And over thirty
25 years $13 million dollars.  The first year community
26 impact two million and over thirty years 14 million in
27 total community impact.  Thank you, sir.
28 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  Any
29 questions or comments for Mr. Nelson?
30 JIMMY DAVIS:  I do.
31 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Davis, Jimmy
32 Davis.
33 JIMMY DAVIS:  Mr. Nelson, so this
34 fee in lieu agreement is for the building -- to
35 purchase the building itself and invest in the building
36 and the property?
37 BURRISS NELSON:  Well, the
38 infrastructure credit agreement, the first half of it,
39 is for the existing building.  The existing building
40 was owned by a manufacturing operation.
41 JIMMY DAVIS:  Correct.
42 BURRISS NELSON:  However, when they
43 released it because of how their fee agreement is set
44 up and the benefits that they have, they could not
45 transfer those benefits and continue with the fee in
46 lieu of taxes.
47 JIMMY DAVIS:  That’s where I was
48 heading.  This agreement is replacing a different one?
49 BURRISS NELSON:  Right.  That’s it. 
50 But it kicked it out of the fee system and put it into



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - February 6, 2024
15

1 ad valorem tax; it was exposed to ad valorem tax.  So
2 for them to be able to receive the same benefits, we
3 had to offer the infrastructure credit agreement to be
4 able to -- and that’s why it’s a shortened period. 
5 They’ve already received two years of benefit under the
6 old ownership, and the new benefit is only for two
7 years at the incentive amount.
8 JIMMY DAVIS:  And if I’m not
9 mistaken, it was just basically storage before and now
10 we’re looking at some actual manufacturing going on?
11 BURRISS NELSON:  That’s exactly
12 right.  Yes, sir.
13 JIMMY DAVIS:  Thank you, Mr.
14 Chairman.
15 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  Anyone
16 else have any questions or comments for Mr. Nelson? 
17 All in favor of the motion -- do we have a motion?
18 BRETT SANDERS:   So moved.
19 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr. Sanders. 
20 Have a second?
21 JIMMY DAVIS:  Second.
22 LEON HARMON:  I don’t think there
23 was a motion.
24 TOMMY DUNN:   That’s what I’m
25 asking.  I just asked for a motion.  Mr. Sanders made
26 the motion.
27 LEON HARMON:  Oh, okay.
28 TOMMY DUNN:   We got a second?
29 JIMMY DAVIS:  Second.
30 TOMMY DUNN:   Second by Councilman
31 Jimmy Davis.  Now, open the floor up for discussion? 
32 All in favor of the motion, show of hands.  All opposed
33 like sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.
34 Mr. Thayer, keep him straight over there, now.
35 We’re going to move on now to item number (c),
36 Ordinance number ---
37 JIMMY DAVIS:  You want me to go
38 get Mr. Wright?
39 TOMMY DUNN:   No.  He’s recused
40 himself from this, too.  
41 We’re going to move on to item number (c), 7(c), 
42 2024-007, an Ordinance to amend an agreement for the
43 development of a joint county industrial and business
44 park (2010 Park) of Anderson and Greenville counties so
45 as to enlarge the park to include certain property of
46 Project Turkey; and other matters related thereto.
47 Do we have a motion to put this on the floor?
48 JIMMY DAVIS:  So moved.
49 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr. Jimmy
50 Davis and second Ms. Wilson.  Open the floor up for



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - February 6, 2024
16

1 discussion.  This is just to put it in a business park
2 where they can get all the benefits of fee in lieu of
3 agreement with Greenville.  And we do this back and
4 forth.  Mr. Nelson, do you want to chime in on that?
5 BURRISS NELSON:  That’s a perfect
6 explanation.  Thank you, sir.
7 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  Anyone
8 else?  Anymore discussion?  All in favor of the motion,
9 show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion
10 carries unanimously.
11 Now, somebody get Mr. Wright.
12 We’re going to move on now to item number 7(d),
13 2024-008, an Ordinance to amend Section 24-335 of the
14 Anderson County, South Carolina, Code of Ordinances to
15 add an additional subsection concerning the effect of
16 an appeal of a Planning Commission decision on a
17 subsequent preliminary plat submission; and other
18 matters related thereto.
19 Do we have a motion to move this forward?
20 JIMMY DAVIS:  So moved.
21 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion by Councilman
22 Jimmy Davis; and second Ms. Wilson.  Open the floor up
23 for discussion.  What this does is if something is on
24 appeal -- if the Planning Commission turns something
25 down or approved something and it’s appealed, it can’t
26 change over and come back in until that appeal has been
27 heard or withdrawn.  Mr. Harmon?
28 LEON HARMON:  Mr. Chairman, that’s
29 essentially correct, except that it applies only when
30 there’s a denial from the Planning Commission, and not
31 when an interested party brings the appeal.
32 TOMMY DUNN:   That’s right.  It
33 wouldn’t make sense the other way.  Thank you.  Anymore
34 discussion?  All in favor of the motion, show of hands. 
35 All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
36 unanimously.
37 Moving on to 8(a), Ordinance first reading,
38 2024-002, an Ordinance to amend an agreement for the
39 development of a joint county industrial and business
40 park (2010 Park) of Anderson and Greenville counties so
41 as to enlarge the park.  Project Colorful.
42 Mr. Nelson.
43 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you, Mr.
44 Chairman.  This is for the company project Colorful
45 that we completed the ordinances on and had a press
46 release and announcement for APG, the additive plastics
47 group down in the Cheddar Community, creating 24 jobs
48 with an average pay of $28.00 an hour; a great add to
49 that Cheddar Community.  But this puts it in the multi-
50 county park, allowing them to receive the benefits of



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - February 6, 2024
17

1 all the incentive packages that could be available to
2 them.  Thank you, sir.
3 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  Anybody
4 have any questions or comments for Mr. Nelson?  
5 Ms. Wilson.
6 CINDY WILSON:   Thank you, `Mr.
7 Burriss Nelson and our Administrator for really trying
8 to encourage good development in our county in the way
9 of industry and business.  And this particular project
10 is in an area that suffered, so it’s very, very nice to
11 have a good employer in that area.  Thank you.
12 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.
13 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you.
14 TOMMY DUNN:   Do we have a motion
15 to move this forward?  Motion by Mr. Elgin.  Do we have
16 a second?
17 CINDY WILSON:   Second.
18 TOMMY DUNN:   Second by Councilman
19 Glenn Davis.  Open the floor up for discussion.  All in
20 favor of the motion, show of hands.  All opposed like
21 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.
22 We’re going to move on to item number 8(b), 
23 2024-009, an Ordinance to amend an agreement for the
24 development of a joint county industrial and business
25 park (2010 Park) of Anderson and Greenville counties so
26 as to enlarge the park.
27 Mr. Nelson.
28 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you, Mr.
29 Chairman and members of Council.  This is Project
30 Highway 81 Logistics, which is the FedEx building out
31 on 81.  This puts this project into the multi-county
32 park agreement, allowing them to garner all the
33 incentives that could be available to them from state
34 and local statutes and ordinances.  
35 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
36 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.
37 Do we have a motion to move this forward?
38 CINDY WILSON:   So moved.
39 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Ms. Wilson. 
40 Do we have a second?
41 JIMMY DAVIS:  Second.
42 TOMMY DUNN:   Second by Councilman
43 Wright.  Any discussion?  All in favor of the motion,
44 show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion
45 carries unanimously.
46 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you all for
47 your support.
48 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you. 
49 Appreciate it.  
50 We’re going to move on to item number 8(c), 



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - February 6, 2024
18

1 2024-010, an Ordinance to amend section 28-48 of the
2 Code of Ordinances, Anderson County, South Carolina,
3 to provide for two at-large members to the Anderson
4 County Library Board of Trustees; and other matters
5 related thereto.  Have a motion to move this forward?
6 JOHN WRIGHT:  So moved.
7 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr. Wright. 
8 Do we have a second?
9 JIMMY DAVIS:  Second.
10 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr. Davis. 
11 Open the floor up for discussion?  I want to say, it
12 was brought up a while ago, if this passes -- this
13 takes three readings.  And if this passes, it’ll be
14 like any other board we’ve done in the past.  There
15 will be an application process.  It’s open to the
16 public.  County Council will look through those
17 applications.  Might take all of them; might not, but
18 there will be an interview process and full Council
19 will vote on it at a Council meeting.  That’s how that
20 works.  Anymore discussion?
21 GLENN DAVIS:  Yes, sir, Mr.
22 Chairman, I’d like to say something, please.
23 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Davis, Mr. Glenn
24 Davis.
25 GLENN DAVIS:  Yes, sir.  We’ve had
26 some residents that came and spoke on this and I’m in
27 total agreement with them.  We shouldn’t politicize the
28 library board.  Those are my feelings and my feelings
29 only.  We should not politicize the library board. 
30 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
31 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  And I
32 couldn’t agree more.  I’m not for politicizing the
33 library board neither.  Anybody got anything else?
34 JIMMY DAVIS:  Mr. Chair, if I may?
35 TOMMY DUNN:   Yes, sir. 
36 JIMMY DAVIS:  As a point of
37 clarification, all of us up here know this, but the
38 library board is the only board that Council can
39 appointment someone to, but we can’t remove by state
40 law.  We don’t know why that is the way it is, but
41 that’s the way it is.  And so any other board or
42 commission that we fill a seat on, we cannot remove
43 them, so they do not serve at the pleasure of Council
44 as other boards and commissions do for this.  So I
45 applaud the effort by Representative April Cromer in
46 Columbia to help us try to iron that out and maybe see
47 why that is and what we can do to change it, because
48 we’re the ones that appoint them.  We should be also
49 the ones that can remove them if we see fit.  So I
50 applaud Representative Cromer for working that out. 



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - February 6, 2024
19

1 But I wanted to make sure everyone was clear that that
2 is the case.  So we appoint and they serve a four-year
3 term.  We’ve had several new appointees on there and
4 I’m excited about their service and I look forward to
5 see where this goes.  Thank you, Mr. Chair.
6 TOMMY DUNN:   Yes, sir.  Keep in
7 mind, these boards -- if this is approved, it’ll be a
8 two-year term and they will be staggered -- and they’ll
9 serve that term like what you call it; can’t be removed
10 neither, according to state law.  That’s the way that
11 works.  And the library’s board job is to govern the
12 library.  All County Council can do is pass millage;
13 not even a budget.  All we can do is approve the
14 millage.  The library board is supposed to run the
15 library.  Anymore discussion?
16 CINDY WILSON:   May I?
17 TOMMY DUNN:   Ms. Wilson.
18 CINDY WILSON:   As Mr. Davis pointed
19 out, the terms are four years.  Our Council terms are
20 two years.  So that makes it sometimes difficult if
21 someone wants someone else on there.  But the funding
22 for the library, it’s referred to as a discrete fund
23 and that basically is Anderson County taxpayers fund 92
24 percent, according to some research Mr. Leon Harmon
25 provided us recently, and six percent state and two
26 percent is composed of mostly fines and grants and so
27 forth.  
28 And it has to be said, there has been no book
29 banning, yet we were overwhelmed with allegations of
30 that taking place.  And it’s just very sad that we have
31 had some mis-information floating around.
32 But I think we have probably one of the best
33 libraries in the state.  I know Ms. Faith Line won many
34 awards for our county with her leadership.  
35 But anyway, we look forward to even better days. 
36 Thank you.
37 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  Anyone
38 else?  
39 GLENN DAVIS:  I’d like to ask
40 Council, how many of you guys have went and talked to
41 the library director?
42 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Davis, Mr. Glenn
43 Davis asked has anybody talked to -- how many has went
44 and talked to the library director?
45 JOHN WRIGHT:  About adding these
46 positions or just ---
47 GLENN DAVIS:  Just go talk with
48 her; general conversations?
49 JOHN WRIGHT:  I’ve had
50 conversations with her.  Not about this specifically.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - February 6, 2024
20

1 But you know, I’ve got three young kids and they love
2 the library, you know.  But not about this
3 specifically.
4 GLENN DAVIS:  We have an awesome
5 library, awesome staff.  
6 CINDY WILSON:   I used to spend a
7 lot of time over there with a child.  And my mother had
8 lots of hours with us over there when we were small. 
9 It’s an awesome place to learn.
10 GLENN DAVIS:  It sure is.
11 TOMMY DUNN:   I’ve talked to my
12 library board appointee numerous times, past and
13 present.  Anymore discussion?  All in favor of the
14 motion, show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show
15 the motion carries with Mr. Davis, Mr. Jimmy Davis, Mr.
16 Brett Sanders, Mr. Tommy Dunn, Mr. Elgin, Mr. Wright
17 and Ms. Wilson in favor.  Mr. Glenn Davis opposes.
18 We’re going to move on now to number 9,
19 Resolutions.  There are none.
20 Move on to item number 10, ACATS Policy Committee
21 appointee.  We’ve got a new position that’s come up on
22 the board.  It’s not a new opening.  This is a new
23 position; adding one.  And they’ve asked me, coming
24 from Council, to appoint somebody, and I nominate Brett
25 Sanders, Council District 4.
26 JOHN WRIGHT:  Second.
27 TOMMY DUNN:   Have a second from
28 John Wright, Jr.  Any discussion?  All in favor of the
29 motion, show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show
30 the motion carries unanimously.
31 Moving on to item number 11, vehicle donation.
32 This is for a trailer for the town of Williamston.  Mr.
33 Harmon, do you want to elaborate on this just a little
34 bit?
35 LEON HARMON: Yes, Mr. Chairman. 
36 This is a surplus radar trailer that’s no longer needed
37 by the Sheriff’s Office.  Town of Williamston has
38 expressed an interest in it.  They will perform needed
39 repairs to it and use the trailer as it’s intended.
40 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  Do we
41 have a motion to move this forward?
42 CINDY WILSON:   So moved.
43 BRETT SANDERS:   So moved.
44 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Ms. Wilson;
45 second by Mr. Sanders.  Any discussion?  All in favor
46 of the motion, show of hands.  All opposed like sign. 
47 Show the motion carries unanimously.
48 We’re going to move on now to item number 12, 
49 consideration of construction management at-risk as the
50 project delivery method for the construction of the new



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - February 6, 2024
21

1 detention center.  
2 Mr. Sanders, you’ve been on the committee.  Do you
3 want to go over this or do you want Mr. Harmon ---
4 BRETT SANDERS:   I’ll be happy, and
5 Mr. Harmon, you feel free to jump in.  Basically under
6 the hard bid system and the numbers that we have got or
7 been getting, it’s merely an estimate.  Also, under a
8 hard bid system, it will alleviate the ability for
9 local contractors -- a lot of local contractors to step
10 in and basically what I call recycle the tax money,
11 because of the required bond requirements they have. 
12 If we go under CMAR, it will -- everything will be
13 transparent.  Every bid, everything is the actual
14 numbers.  Also, the job can be broken into sections and
15 parts to where some of our smaller qualified
16 contractors and subcontractors can actually
17 participate, local development can participate in it. 
18 I think that it is a lot more transparent bid and I
19 know that with the economy we’re in now, everybody
20 here, I mean I don’t know of anyone here that would be
21 willing to step up and put a hard bid on a project
22 that’s three to five years out without putting
23 unnecessary -- well, it is necessary padding, because
24 you don’t know the outcome.  So I think this will
25 alleviate that and eliminate it.  
26 And also, under CMAR in the contingency area,
27 anything that comes in under budget is actually
28 negotiated and the county would get back anywhere from
29 a hundred percent to ninety percent and the contractor
30 would be allowed on the negotiation to receive a
31 portion of that.  So it’s in the contractor and
32 subcontractors’ best interest to save money.  So I’m
33 strongly in favor of this, especially on a project of
34 this scale and scope, and in the time frame.  And
35 that’s pretty much what I have.  
36 Mr. Harmon, would you like to elaborate, please,
37 sir?
38 LEON HARMON:  Just for the record, 
39 our procurement code requires that we issue a public
40 notice if the Council is planning to consider CMAR as a
41 project delivery method.  We did that.  We published a
42 public notice.  The notice asked for anyone who wished
43 to comment to present written comments.  The clerk, as
44 late as about noon today, told me she had not received
45 any written comments about using CMAR.  No one spoke in
46 the first section of the meeting about using CMAR.  So
47 I think this is before the Council now for
48 consideration.
49 BRETT SANDERS:   Mr. Chairman, I’d
50 also like to add that we did have meetings with



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - February 6, 2024
22

1 different contractors that are planning on bidding on
2 the contract.  And everyone that came into the meeting,
3 the bid contractors came in with the understanding and
4 most of them were confused that it was a CMAR CM at R-
5 sk contract.  The other thing is, Moseley, our
6 architect firm, said that the ones that didn’t bid -- I
7 assume that even more companies did not bid because
8 they don’t feel comfortable doing hard bids.  They’d
9 rather do CM at Risk.  And I think once this gets sent
10 back out, we’ll receive additional qualified builders
11 and contractors stepping up.  So thank you.
12 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  Do we
13 have a motion to put this on the floor?
14 CINDY WILSON:   So moved.
15 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Ms. Wilson. 
16 Do we have a second?
17 GREG ELGIN:  Second.
18 TOMMY DUNN:   Second by Councilman
19 Elgin.  Now open the floor up for discussion.
20 JOHN WRIGHT:  Mr. Chairman?
21 TOMMY DUNN:   Councilman Wright.
22 JOHN WRIGHT:  Mr. Harmon, when did
23 that public notice go out?  How long does it have to be
24 out for?
25 LEON HARMON:  It went out -- I’ve
26 got a date here, I think.  It went out on January the
27 21st.  
28 JOHN WRIGHT:  Okay.
29 LEON HARMON:  Fifteen days would
30 have been yesterday.
31 JOHN WRIGHT:  Got it.  Thank you.
32 TOMMY DUNN:   Ms. Wilson.
33 CINDY WILSON:   Well, I just want to
34 thank Mr. Sanders and everyone who’s worked on this. 
35 This is a very complex, very expensive project,
36 desperately needed, especially here with the recent
37 jail population counts.  And that is such a rough place
38 over there.  So thank y’all for doing that and bringing
39 some more modern techniques to handle construction
40 projects.  Thank you.
41 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.
42 I just want to add, most of the jails being built
43 or projects being done like this are being done at CM
44 at Risk, for a multitude of reasons.  I think we’ll get
45 more participation or want to have participation. 
46 Another thing is, part of that is supposed to bring the
47 contractor in on the get-go and he makes suggestions of
48 ways -- a better way to do things or another
49 alternative to do something that might save money; just
50 to save money.  So I think it could be a win/win for



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - February 6, 2024
23

1 us.  Anyone have any -- Mr. Davis, you got something?
2 JIMMY DAVIS:  Thank you, Mr.
3 Chair.  Just to make it simple, if you live in Anderson
4 County, this has a greater potential of saving your tax
5 dollars on this project.  We know we’ve got to build a
6 detention center and this is the way to go.  And we’ve
7 learned some lessons the hard way over the last couple
8 of years, so I’m excited to see us move forward with
9 this and get some good competition in here.  
10 Thank you, Mr. Chair.
11 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  Anyone
12 else?  All in favor of the motion, show of hands.  All
13 opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
14 unanimously.
15 We’re going to move on now to item number 13,
16 change orders/bid approvals.  This is 13(a), bid number
17 24-018, boiler for the Anderson Sports Entertainment
18 Center.  Mr. Harmon.
19 LEON HARMON:  Mr. Chairman and
20 members of Council, the county received bids on January
21 the 11th to replace the boiler at the Civic Center.  I
22 think the boiler is original equipment out there, so
23 it’s been there for quite sometime.  The county sent
24 the bid package to 11 companies.  Had two companies to
25 submit a bid.  And the staff recommends award to the
26 low bidder, McCarter Mechanical of Spartanburg.  The
27 total price for the boiler replacement is $267,766.00. 
28 And staff requests approval of the bid.
29 TOMMY DUNN:   Do we have a motion
30 to move this forward?  
31 CINDY WILSON:   So moved.
32 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Ms. Wilson.
33 We have a second?  Second by Councilman Elgin.  Open
34 the floor up for discussion.  
35 GREG ELGIN:  Mr. Chairman.
36 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Elgin,
37 Councilman Elgin.
38 GREG ELGIN:  On these bids, I
39 know we mentioned it before, but with 11 bids sent out
40 and two returning, and I know we can’t make people bid,
41 but is there anyway we can get a copy of those, how
42 that bid was wrote so we can see -- and not necessarily
43 this one but just in the future, so we can see how they
44 are actually sent out and why nobody is responding to
45 them.
46 LEON HARMON:  Sure.  I think you
47 can certainly have a copy of the RFP that was sent out
48 for this.  And if there are others that comes in the
49 future that you want, yes, we can get you a copy of
50 that.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - February 6, 2024
24

1 GREG ELGIN:  I know the last two
2 change orders we’ve had, we’ve had one bid on one and
3 then two on this one.  So it just to me seems like
4 we’re not getting a response and I’m not sure why.
5 TOMMY DUNN:   I think one thing
6 because there’s so much work going on right now. 
7 Another thing is they might have sent 11 out -- I don’t
8 know about all 11 companies, but there’s not a whole
9 lot of companies can do major work like this right
10 here.  This is a bid project.
11 CINDY WILSON:   May I?
12 TOMMY DUNN:   Yes, ma’am. 
13 CINDY WILSON:   Is Electric City,
14 the second -- well, the only other bidder, are they
15 local?
16 TOMMY DUNN:   Yes, ma’am. 
17 CINDY WILSON:   Is there a local
18 preference ---
19 TOMMY DUNN:   We do have that in
20 the thing, but I’m ---
21 JIMMY DAVIS:  It’s a certain
22 percentage.
23 TOMMY DUNN:   Yeah, it’s a
24 percentage, and I’m assuming that they didn’t come in
25 on that.
26 BRETT SANDERS:   I know there’s only
27 a $10,000.00 difference between the two.  Is that
28 calculated in the figures that we received?
29 LEON HARMON:  I think that’s the
30 numbers off the bid itself.  All I have ---
31 JIMMY DAVIS:  We did a local
32 preference percentage a long, long time ago.
33 TOMMY DUNN:   We’re supposed to
34 have a local preference on certain things unless it
35 caps out.  Listen, this thing ain’t going to -- we can
36 always come back and have a thing before next thing.  I
37 don’t see what the urgency is.  We can just table this
38 until we can get some more information on this.
39 JIMMY DAVIS:  Do we need a motion
40 to table?
41 TOMMY DUNN:   Yep.
42 JIMMY DAVIS:  I make a motion we
43 table this.
44 BRETT SANDERS:   Second.
45 CINDY WILSON:   Second.
46 TOMMY DUNN:   Have a motion by Mr.
47 Davis and second by Mr. Sanders to table this.  Motion
48 to table is a non-debatable item.  All in favor of the
49 motion, show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show
50 the motion carries unanimously.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - February 6, 2024
25

1 We’re going to move on to item number 14, 14(a) and
2 (b) -- or 14(a), rather, executive session to seek
3 legal advice regarding an application for assessment of
4 real property as agricultural property (TMS No. 106-00-
5 06-004.  Do we have a motion to go into executive
6 session to take legal advice.  Motion by Councilman
7 Elgin.  Do we have a second?
8 CINDY WILSON:   Second.
9 TOMMY DUNN:   Second by Ms.
10 Wilson.  All in favor of the motion, show of hands. 
11 All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
12 unanimously. 
13 Be back in a few minutes.
14 EXECUTIVE SESSION
15 CINDY WILSON:   ... a motion, Mr.
16 Chairman, that we come out of executive session, having
17 received legal advice regarding an application for
18 assessment of real property as agricultural property,
19 with no votes taken in executive session.
20 TOMMY DUNN:   We have a motion by
21 Ms. Wilson; have a second?
22 JIMMY DAVIS:  Second.
23 TOMMY DUNN:   Second by Councilman
24 Elgin.  All in favor of the motion, show of hands.  All
25 opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
26 unanimously.
27 Now, do we have a motion?
28 GREG ELGIN:  Mr. Chair, I’d like
29 to make a statement first before I make the motion, if
30 that’s okay?
31 TOMMY DUNN:   Yes, sir. 
32 GREG ELGIN:  The tax matter under
33 consideration involves a 25-acre chicken farm located
34 in my district.  I have reviewed this matter, including
35 meeting with the former property owner and
36 representative for current property owners.  The
37 current property owners purchased the fully operational
38 farm in July 2021.  The owners are refugees from
39 Myanmar, former Burma in Southeast Asia.  English is
40 their second language.  They do not understand or speak
41 English very well.  The property owners were sent a tax
42 bill October 2022 to a North Carolina address, which
43 was the address on the deed.  The tax bill was not
44 computed at the agricultural rate.  The taxpayers had
45 until the first penalty date to make an application for
46 reclassification as agricultural property.
47 Upon learning of the problem in January 2023, the
48 property owners filed for agricultural status 11 days
49 after the deadline to apply for reclassification.  The
50 property owners appealed to the County Board of



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - February 6, 2024
26

1 Assessment Appeals, which declined to rule on this
2 merit due to lack of jurisdiction.  The taxpayers then
3 filed an appeal with the Administrative Law Court,
4 which has been dismissed.  State law provides that the
5 governing body of the county may extend the time for
6 filing for agricultural classification upon a showing
7 of reasonable cause for the delay in filing for the
8 reclassification.  
9 The property owners have requested for County
10 Council to consider this matter and under circumstances
11 of this case find that they have reasonable cause for
12 delay in filing for the reclassification.  In my
13 judgment the taxpayers had reasonable cause for the
14 delay in applying for reclassification as agricultural
15 property as required by state law.  Upon learning of
16 the problem, they filed the reclassification of the
17 property as agricultural.
18 Considering these facts and solely under the
19 circumstances of this case, the taxpayers have
20 demonstrated a reasonable cause for the delay in
21 application for reclassification.  I also request that
22 a copy of the decision from the Board of Assessment
23 Appeals be included in the minutes of this meeting.
24 So with that said, I’d like to make a motion, Mr.
25 Chairman.
26 CINDY WILSON:   Second.
27 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Elgin, your
28 motion is to accept the extended deadline where they
29 can pay this; right?
30 GREG ELGIN:  Yes, sir. 
31 TOMMY DUNN:   Okay.  And you have
32 a second from Ms. Wilson.  Open the floor up for
33 discussion.  All in favor of the motion, show of hands. 
34 All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
35 unanimously.
36 Moving on to item number 15, requests by Council
37 members, Ms. Wilson.
38 CINDY WILSON:   District 7 is low on
39 funds.  Thank you.
40 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.
41 Councilman Wright.
42 JOHN WRIGHT:  Thank you, Mr.
43 Chairman.  From District 1's special appropriations
44 account, I’d like to allocate $500 to the Junior League
45 of Anderson County; and $500 to the Piedmont Community
46 Alliance.  I put that in the form of a motion.
47 CINDY WILSON:   Second.
48 TOMMY DUNN:   Have a motion Mr.
49 Wright; second Ms. Wilson.  Any discussion?  All in
50 favor of the motion, show of hands.  All opposed like



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - February 6, 2024
27

1 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.
2 Councilman Elgin.
3 GREG ELGIN:  Yes, sir.  For
4 District 3, I’d like to put these two in the form of a
5 motion.  First one for Junior League of Anderson $250;
6 and second for Piedmont Community Alliance $250.00.
7 TOMMY DUNN:   We have a motion. 
8 Have a second?
9 CINDY WILSON:   Second.
10 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Ms. Wilson. 
11 Any discussion?  All in favor of the motion, show of
12 hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
13 unanimously.
14 Moving on to Councilman Glenn Davis.
15 GLENN DAVIS:  Thank you, Mr.
16 Chairman.  From District 2's special rec account, I’d
17 like to do $500 to the Junior League of Anderson; and
18 Piedmont Community Alliance $500.  And I put that in
19 the form of a motion.
20 TOMMY DUNN:   Have a motion from
21 Mr. Glenn Davis.  Have a second?
22 CINDY WILSON:   Second.
23 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Ms. Wilson. 
24 Any discussion?  All in favor of the motion, show of
25 hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
26 unanimously.
27 Out of District 5's special appropriation account,
28 I’d like to appropriate $500 to the Junior League of
29 Anderson and $500 to Piedmont Community Alliance.  I
30 put that in the form of a motion.
31 CINDY WILSON:   Second.
32 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Ms. Wilson. 
33 Any discussion?  Hearing none and seeing none, all in
34 favor of the motion, show of hands.  All opposed like
35 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.
36 Councilman Sanders.
37 BRETT SANDERS:   Thank you, Mr.
38 Chairman.  I’d like to combine my motion if it’s all
39 right with you guys.  From my special appropriations
40 account, I’d like to do $500 to Junior League of
41 Anderson; and $500 for Piedmont Community Alliance. 
42 Put that in the form of a motion, sir.
43 CINDY WILSON:   Second.
44 TOMMY DUNN:   Have a motion Mr.
45 Sanders; second Ms. Wilson.  Any discussion?  All in
46 favor of the motion, show of hands.  All opposed like
47 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.
48 Councilman Jimmy Davis.
49 JIMMY DAVIS:  Thank you, Mr.
50 Chair.  If I may, I’d like to combine all of these into



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - February 6, 2024
28

1 one motion.  To the Junior League of Anderson $250; to
2 Anderson County Parks Department to help with the Disc
3 Golf $1000; and to Piedmont Community Alliance $2000. 
4 I make that in the form of a motion.
5 BRETT SANDERS:   Second.
6 CINDY WILSON:   Second.
7 TOMMY DUNN:   Have a motion by Mr.
8 Jimmy Davis; and second by Mr. Sanders.  Any
9 discussion?  All in favor of the motion, show of hands. 
10 All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
11 unanimously.
12 Moving on now to Administrator’s report.
13 LEON HARMON:  Nothing at this
14 time, Mr. Chairman.
15 TOMMY DUNN:   You can at least say
16 you’re enjoying your job.
17 BRETT SANDERS:   He wants paid for
18 it, too.
19 TOMMY DUNN:   Moving on now to
20 citizens’ comments.  When Mr. Harmon calls your name,
21 please, for the record, state your name and district
22 for the record, address the chair, and you have three
23 minutes.  Mr. Harmon.
24 LEON HARMON:  Mr. Chairman, no one
25 is signed up to speak at this time.
26 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.
27 Moving on now to remarks from Council members.  
28 Mr. Jimmy Davis.
29 JIMMY DAVIS:  Nothing, sir.
30 TOMMY DUNN:   Moving on to
31 Councilman Sanders.
32 BRETT SANDERS:   Nothing at this
33 time, sir.
34 TOMMY DUNN:   Moving on to
35 Councilman Glenn Davis.
36 GLENN DAVIS:  Thank you, Mr.
37 Chairman.  We’ve having our annual senior citizens’
38 Valentine lunch on February 14th.  If you know any
39 widows or widowers that are seniors that don’t have a
40 date for Valentine’s, they can come out to Homeland
41 Park Fire Department and get a lunch, good Southern
42 cooking.  Sponsored by Anderson County District 2 and
43 District 5.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
44 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  Anyone
45 else?  Anything else, I’m sorry?
46 GLENN DAVIS:  No, sir.
47 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.
48 Councilman Elgin.
49 GREG ELGIN:  Nothing, sir.  Thank
50 you.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - February 6, 2024
29

1 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.
2 Councilman Wright.
3 JOHN WRIGHT:  Nothing at this
4 time, Mr. Chairman.
5 TOMMY DUNN:   Ms. Wilson.
6 CINDY WILSON:   Nothing.  Thank you.
7 TOMMY DUNN:   I’d just like to say
8 I appreciate everybody coming tonight.  I want to thank
9 Council members.  Let’s please keep, again, Mr. Burns
10 and his family -- I don’t know when he’s going to come
11 back.  I encouraged him to take the rest of the week
12 off.  So we’ll see.  If y’all need anything, got
13 anything, Mr. Harmon is the man to contact.
14 Meeting be dismissed.
15
16 (MEETING ADJOURNED AT 7:33 P.M.)



ORDINANCE NO. 2024-005 

AN ORDINANCE TO LEASE REAL PROPERTY TO HOPE MISSIONS OF THE 
UPSTATE; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO.  

WHEREAS, the Anderson County Code requires a public hearing prior to the lease of 
real property; and 

 WHEREAS, Anderson County is the current owner of a parcel of land located at 213 S 
Towers Street in the City of Anderson and identified by tax map number 123-30-15-001; and 

 WHEREAS, HOPE Missions of the Upstate, is a South Carolina nonprofit corporation 
registered with the State of South Carolina; and  

 WHEREAS, the property referenced will be used by HOPE Missions of the Upstate for 
the purpose of operating as a nonprofit corporation.    

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Anderson County Council in meeting duly 
assembled that: 

1.  Anderson County desires to lease the following real property to HOPE Missions of the 
Upstate for a nominal fee: 

 a. A portion of a building on land situated at 213 S. Towers Street, Anderson, South   
    Carolina 29624; TMS No. 123-30-15-001.  
 
2. The Anderson County Administrator is hereby authorized and directed to execute any 
documents necessary to effectuate the lease of this parcel of real property as described herein and 
in a form substantially similar to, and not materially different from, the lease agreement attached 
hereto as Exhibit A. 
 
3. All other terms, provisions, sections, and contents of the Code of Ordinances, Anderson 
County, South Carolina not specifically affected hereby remain in full force and effect. 
 
4. Should any part or provision of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such determination shall not affect the 
remainder of this Ordinance, all of which is hereby deemed separable. 
 
5. This Ordinance shall take effect from and after the public hearing and the third reading in 
accordance with the Code of Ordinances, Anderson County, South Carolina. 

 
ORDAINED in meeting duly assembled this _________ day of ________, 2024. 
 
 
 

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW] 
 



 
ATTEST:          FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 
 

Rusty Burns      Tommy Dunn, District #5, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator 
                                                                           
 
 
Renee Watts 
Clerk to Council 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 
 
 
 
First Reading:       February 20, 2024 
Second Reading:  March 5, 2024 
Third Reading:     March 19, 2024 
 
Public Hearing:    March 19, 2024 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 

)  GROUND LEASE AGREEMENT 
COUNTY OF ANDERSON  )   

This Ground Lease Agreement, effective as of January 1, 2024 (“Ground Lease”), by and between 
ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision 
of the State of South Carolina (“Ground Lessor”) and HOPE Missions of the Upstate, a South Carolina 
nonprofit corporation. (“Ground Lessee”). 

RECITALS: 

WHEREAS, Ground Lessor desires to lease to Ground Lessee and Ground Lessee desires to lease from 
Ground Lessor the entire main floor of the building to provide office space for Ground Lessee; 

WHEREAS, Ground Lessor and Ground Lessee desire that that the office space be located on one or 
more parcels of real property owned by Ground Lessor, as more fully described on Exhibit A and more 
fully depicted on Exhibit B, each of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference 
(collectively, “Demised Premises”); 

WHEREAS, Ground Lessor and Ground Lessee desire to establish the terms and conditions of this 
Ground Lease to fulfill the foregoing objectives. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises of the parties, the receipt 
and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree that the foregoing recitals are 
true and correct and incorporated herein by this reference, and further agree as follows: 

WITNESSETH: 

Section 1. Premises. In exchange for (a) Ground Lessee’s remittance to Ground Lessor of $1.00 per 
year, to be paid on the effective date of this Ground Lease. , (b) Ground Lessee’s use of its funds to pay for 
Office space, (c) the mutual covenants and agreements herein contained, and (d) other good and valuable 
consideration, the receipt and legal sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged by the parties hereto, 
Ground Lessor hereby demises and rents unto Ground Lessee, and Ground Lessee here by rents and hires 
from Ground Lessor, the Demised Premises. 

The following additional stipulations, hereby declared to be conditions of this Ground Lease, shall, 
unless otherwise expressly stated, be applicable at all times throughout the term of this Ground Lease and 
are mutually agreed upon by the parties. 

Section 2. Management and Operation of Office space. The costs of office space shall be borne 
solely by Ground Lessee. Ground Lessee covenants and agrees to comply or cause compliance with all 
laws, ordinances, municipal rules, and regulations and requirements of public authorities applying to or 
affecting the conduct of any construction related to the office space. Ground Lessee shall pay to Ground 
Lessor 25% of all building utilities (electricity, water, sewer) within 10 days 0f receiving an invoice from 
the Ground Lessor.  The Ground Lessee is responsible for its telephone and internet services.    

Section 3. Term of Ground Lease. The term of this Ground Lease shall be for the period beginning 
January 1, 2024 and ending on December 31, 2024. 



2 
 

Section 4. Authority. Ground Lessor and Ground Lessee each represent and warrant they have full 
power and authority to execute and enter into this Ground Lease for the full term herein granted under the 
terms and conditions provided herein and that this Ground Lease is a valid and binding obligation of each 
of them enforceable in accordance with its terms 

Section 5. Quiet Enjoyment. Ground Lessor covenants that Ground Lessee, on the performance of the 
terms and conditions of this Ground Lease, shall and may peaceably and quietly have, hold and enjoy the 
Demised Premises for the full term of this Ground Lease. 

Section 6. No Partnership or Joint Venture. Under no circumstances shall Ground Lessor and 
Ground Lessee be deemed or held to be partners or joint ventures in or concerning the Demised Premises. 

Section 7. Condition of Demised Premises and Disclaimer of Liability. The Demised Premises is 
leased in a “WHERE IS, AS IS” condition. Ground Lessor makes no representation or warranty, express or 
implied, as to the condition of the Demised Premises and expressly disclaims same. 

GROUND LESSOR HEREBY DISCLAIMS, AND GROUND LESSEE HEREBY RELEASES 
GROUND LESSOR AS WELL AS ITS COUNCIL MEMBERS, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES AGENTS, 
SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS FROM, ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, WHETHER IN CONTRACT OR 
TORT (INCLUDING STRICT LIABILITY AND NEGLIGENCE) FOR ANY LOSS, DAMAGE OR 
INJURY OF ANY NATURE WHATSOEVER SUSTAINED BY GROUND LESSEE, ITS EMPLOYEES, 
AGENTS, CONTRACTORS, LICENSEES OR INVITEES ARISING OUT OF, OR RELATED IN ANY 
MANNER TO, THIS GROUND LEASE OR THE USE OF THE DEMISED PREMISES. 
NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING, GROUND LESSOR SHALL BE LIABLE FOR LOSSES, 
DAMAGES OR INJURIES PROXIMATELY CAUSED BY THE GROSS NEGLIGENCE OR 
INTENTIONAL ACTS OF GROUND LESSOR OR ITS EMPLOYEES OR AGENTS. THE PARTIES 
DO, HOWEVER, HEREBY AGREE THAT UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL GROUND 
LESSOR BE LIABLE FOR INDIRECT, CONSEQUENTIAL, SPECIAL OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES, 
WHETHER IN CONTRACT OR TORT. 

Section 8. Insurance. Ground Lessee shall, at its sole expense, carry and keep in force a policy of 
comprehensive liability insurance, including property damage, with respect to office space. Said policy 
shall provide at least the following limits: bodily injury $1,000,000.00 each person, $1,000,000.00 each 
occurrence and property damage $l,000,000.00 each occurrence. In addition to Ground Lessee and to the 
extent possible, the policy shall 1also name Ground Lessor as an additional insured at the cost of Ground 
Lessee, at all times while the Ground Lease is in effect. Ground Lessee shall, upon written request from 
Ground Lessor, deliver to Ground Lessor certificates or other evidence that the insurance coverage required 
above is in effect. Ground Lessee shall further require any third party operating upon the Demised Premises 
or furnishing equipment to be operated upon the Demised Premises to carry comprehensive liability 
insurance in an amount commensurate with the risk, but in no event with less than the limits stated above, 
as well as property and casualty insurance fully insuring said third party’s property against loss. Ground 
Lessee shall have the option of procuring at its sole expense additional insurance coverage against third 
said party risks and liability in which event Ground Lessor shall be named as an additional insured in 
accordance with the foregoing provisions. All insurance required hereunder shall, at a minim um, be issued 
by insurance companies authorized to do business in the State or South Carolina, with a Best’s Rating of at 
least A and a Financial Size Category of at least VH as rated in the most recent edition of Best’s Insurance 
Reports. 

Section 9. Environmental. Ground Lessee and/or its employees, agents, contractors, invitees, licensees 
or permittees shall not deposit or cause to be deposited Hazardous Material (as hereinafter defined) in or 
upon the Demised Premises and shall operate the Demised Premises in full compliance with all laws, orders, 
regulations, rules, ordinances, and requirements of the Federal, State, County and local Governments, 
including all Environmental Laws (as hereinafter defined). The term “Hazardous Material” means any 
substance, chemical, compound, product, solid, gas, liquid, waste, byproduct, pollutant, contaminant, or 
material which is hazardous or toxic. The term “Environmental Laws” means all federal, state and local 



3 
 

laws, statutes, ordinances and regulations, now or hereafter in effect, and applicable to the Premises relating 
to the regulation and protection of human health and safety and/or the environment and natural resources. 

Section 10. Improvements. Ground Lessee shall not erect any permanent structure on or upon the 
Demised Premises. Upon termination of the Ground Lease, Ground Lessee shall, at its sole expense, return 
the Demised Premises to its original condition, normal wear and tear excepted. 

Section 11. Default by Ground Lessee. If Ground Lessee shall fail to keep or shall violate a condition 
or agreement in this Ground Lease on the part of Ground Lessee to be performed and if either such failure 
or violation shall have continued for a period of 60 days after Ground Lessee shall have received written 
notice by certified or registered mail from Ground Lessor to cure such violation or failure, or for such 
additional period of time as may be reasonably necessary provided Ground Lessee diligently undertakes to 
cure such default, then, in such event, Ground Lessor shall have the right at its option, in addition to and 
not in lieu of all of the rights to which it may be entitled to hereunder and by law, to terminate this Ground 
Lease and re-enter and repossess all and singular the Demised Premises. Neither the exercise by Ground 
Lessor of any or all of its rights under this Ground Lease or law nor the defaults by Ground Lessee of any 
of Ground Lessee’s obligations to Ground Lessor shall in any way relieve Ground Lessee of Ground 
Lessee’s obligation to any third party to whom Ground Lessee may be obligated. 

Section 12. Default by Ground Lessor. If Ground Lessor shall fail to keep or shall violate a condition 
or agreement in this Ground Lease on the part of Ground Lessor to be performed and if either such failure 
or violation shall have continued for a period of 60 days after Ground Lessor shall have received written 
notice by certified or registered mail from Ground Lessee to cure such violation or failure, or for such 
additional period of time as may be reasonably necessary provided Ground Lessor diligently undertakes to 
cure such default, then, in such event Ground Lessee may in addition to and not in lieu of all of the rights 
to which it may be entitled hereunder and by law, terminate this Ground Lease and tum over possession of 
the Demised Premises to Ground Lessor. 

Section 13. Termination. Ground Lessee agrees upon the expiration of the original term as specified 
in Section 3, or upon the earlier termination of the Ground Lease as provided herein, to quit and surrender 
the Demised Premises and that all title and interest in the Demises Premises shall vest in Ground Lessor 
free and clear of the encumbrances of this Ground Lease and that the improvements on the Demised 
Premises will be and become the property of Ground Lessor or Ground Lessor’s designee. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, either party may terminate this Ground Lease for convenience upon 
ninety days written notice to the other party.  

Section 14. Notice. Any notice to be given by any party to the other pursuant to the provisions of this 
Ground Lease shall be given by registered or certified mail, addressed to the party for whom it is intended 
at the address stated below, or such other address as may have been designated in writing: 

To Ground Lessee at: [] ______________ 
[] ______________ 
[] ______________ 
Attention: [] ____________ 

To Ground Lessor at: Anderson County 
101 South Main Street 
Anderson, South Carolina 29624 
Attention: County Administrator 

Section 15. Successors and Assigns. The covenants, conditions and agreements contained in this 
Ground Lease shall bind and inure to the benefit of Ground Lessor and Ground Lessee and their respective 
successors and assigns; provided, however, that Ground Lessee shall not assign, sublease or otherwise 
transfer its interests herein without prior written consent of Ground Lessor. 



4 
 

Section 16. Miscellaneous. This Ground Lease shall be subject to the following: 

(a) There are no oral or verbal understandings among Ground Lessor and Ground Lessee concerning 
the subject matter of this Ground Lease, and any amendment, modification or supplement to this Ground 
Lease must be in writing and signed by all parties. 

(b) No waiver of any condition or covenant in this Ground Lease, or of any breach thereof, shall be 
taken to constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach. 

(c) Whenever Ground Lessee requests any consent, permission or approval which may be required or 
desired by Ground Lessee pursuant to the provisions hereof, Ground Lessor shall not be arbitrary or 
capricious in withholding or postponing the granting of such consent, permission or approval. 

(d) All covenants, promises, conditions and obligations herein contained or implied by law are 
covenants running with the land and shall attach and bind and inure to the benefit of Ground Lessor and 
Ground Lessee and their respective legal representatives, successors and assigns, except as otherwise 
provided herein. 

(e) The patties will at any time at the request of any other party, promptly execute duplicate originals 
of an instrument, in recordable form, which will constitute a short form of lease, setting forth a description 
of the Demised Premises, the term of this Ground Lease and any other portions thereof, as either party may 
request. 

Section 17. Execution in Counterparts. This Ground Lease may be simultaneously executed in 
several counterparts each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the 
same instrument. 

Section 18. Applicable Law. This Ground Lease shall be governed by and construed in accordance 
with the laws of the State of South Carolina without regard to conflict of laws principles. 

Section 19. Non-Appropriation. This Ground Lease is at all times subject to the appropriation of funds 
by the Anderson County Council. In the event of non-appropriation, this Ground Lease shall immediately 
terminate without further obligation or liability on the part of Ground Lessor. 

Section 20. Captions. The captions or headings herein are for convenience only and in no way define, 
limit, or describe the scope or intent of any provisions or sections of this Ground Lease. 

[TWO SIGNATURE PAGES AND TWO EXHIBITS FOLLOW] 
[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 

  



5 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have set their hands as of the date first above written. 

GROUND LESSOR: 
ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

By:       
Chairman, County Council 

By:       
County Administrator 

[SEAL] 
Attest: 

By:       
Clerk, County Council 

ADDITIONAL WITNESSES 

       

       

[ANDERSON COUNTY SIGNATURE PAGE] 

  



6 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have set their hands as of the date first above written. 

GROUND LESSEE: 
HOPE MISSIONS OF THE UPSTATE 

By:       
Its: President 

ADDITIONAL WITNESSES 

       

       

[HOPE MISSIONS OF THE UPSTATE SIGNATURE PAGE] 

  



7 
 

EXHIBIT A 
PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 

 
 The building is located at 213 S. Towers Street in Anderson, South Carolina.  
The leased area will be on the main floor and will include the entire floor.  



8 
 

EXHIBIT B 
PROPERTY DEPICTION 

SEE ATTACHED 





 
 

 

 A-1 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-011 
 
AN ORDINANCE FINDING THAT HOMELAND PARK WATER DISTRICT, SOUTH 
CAROLINA, MAY ISSUE NOT EXCEEDING $1,250,000 OF GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
IN ONE OR MORE SERIES; TO AUTHORIZE HOMELAND PARK WATER COMMISSION TO 
ISSUE SUCH BONDS AND TO PROVIDE FOR THE PUBLICATION OF NOTICE OF THE SAID 
FUNDING AND AUTHORIZATION. 
 
 
 WHEREAS, by action previously taken, the Anderson County Council (the “County Council”), 
which is the governing body of Anderson County, South Carolina (the “County”), ordered that a public 
hearing on the question of the issuance of not exceeding $1,250,000 of general obligation bonds of 
Homeland Park Water District, South Carolina (the “District”) be held in the Anderson County Council 
Chambers, at 6:30 p.m. on March 19, 2024, and notice of such public hearing has been duly published once 
a week for three successive weeks in The Anderson Independent-Mail, a newspaper of general circulation in 
the County; and 
  
 WHEREAS, the said hearing has been duly held at the above time, date and place and said public 
hearing was conducted publicly and both proponents and opponents of the proposed action were given full 
opportunity to be heard, and it is now in order for the County Council to proceed, after due deliberation, in 
accordance with the provisions of Title 6, Chapter 11, Article 5 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina, 
1976, as amended, (the “Enabling Act”) to make a finding as to whether not exceeding $1,250,000 of 
general obligation bonds of the District should be issued. 
  
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Council in meeting duly assembled: 
  
 Section 1. It is found and determined that each statement of fact set forth in the preambles of 
this Ordinance is in all respects true and correct. 
  
 Section 2. It is found and determined that the Homeland Park Water Commission (the 
“Commission”), the governing body of the District, should be authorized to issue and should issue not 
exceeding $1,250,000 of general obligation bonds of the District, in one or more series, as the District shall 
determine. 
 
 Section 3. The County Council hereby authorizes the Commission to issue general obligation 
bonds of the District in the aggregate principal amount of not exceeding $1,250,000 as a single issue or from 
time to time as several separate issues, as the Commission shall determine, for the purpose of defraying the 
cost of acquiring, constructing, renovating, installing, furnishing and equipping certain waterline 
improvements, sewer line improvements and facility repairs, and to acquire various items of equipment 
for the District and related issuance costs of such bonds. 
 
 For the payment of the principal of and interest on such bonds as they respectively mature, and for 
the creation of such sinking fund as may be necessary therefor, the full faith, credit and taxing power of the 
District shall be irrevocably pledged, and there shall be levied annually a tax without limit on all taxable 
property in the District sufficient to pay such principal of and interest on the said bonds as they respectively 
mature, and to create such sinking fund. 
 
 Section 4. Pursuant to Section 6-11-870 of the Enabling Act, notice of the action herewith 
taken shall be given in the form substantially as set forth in Exhibit A hereto. Such notice shall be published 
once a week for three successive weeks in The Anderson Independent-Mail, a newspaper of general 
circulation in Anderson County. 



 
 

 

 A-2 

 

 
 Section 5. The County Council is mindful that the provisions of Section 4-9-1220 of the Code 
of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended, apply to this Ordinance. 
 
 Section 6. The Chairman and other officers of the County Council are herewith authorized 
and empowered to take such further action as may be necessary to fully implement the action taken by this 
Ordinance. 
 
 Section 7. A certified copy of this Ordinance shall forthwith be transmitted to the 
Commission to advise it of the action taken by the County Council, whereby the Commission has been 
authorized to issue, pursuant to the provisions of the Enabling Act, its general obligation bonds in the 
aggregate principal amount of not exceeding $1,250,000. 
 
 Section 8. The bonds authorized hereunder to be issued by the District (i) are general 
obligation bonds of the District; (ii) are not general obligations bond of the County; (iii) will in no way 
count against the constitutional debt limit of the County; and (iv) will not constitute or give rise to a 
pecuniary liability of the County or a charge against the full faith, credit or taxing power of the County. 
 
 ORDAINED in meeting duly assembled this _________ day of ________, 2024. 
 
 
 

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW] 
 
 
ATTEST:          FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 
 

Rusty Burns      Tommy Dunn, District #5, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator 
                                                                           
 
 
Renee Watts 
Clerk to Council 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 
 
First Reading: _________________ 
Second Reading: _______________ 
Third Reading:  ________________ 
 
Public Hearing: ________________ 
 



 
 

 

 A-3 

 

 
 
 EXHIBIT A 
 

NOTICE PURSUANT TO SECTION 6-11-870 
CODE OF LAWS OF SOUTH CAROLINA, 1976, AS AMENDED 

 
 Notice is hereby given pursuant to the provisions of Section 6-11-870 of the Code of Laws of South 
Carolina, 1976, as amended, and following a public hearing on March 19, 2024, that the County Council of 
Anderson County has found that: 
 
 1. Homeland Park Water District, South Carolina (the “District”), created by Act No. 1101 of 
the Acts and Joint Resolutions of the General Assembly of the State of South Carolina for the year 1950, as 
amended, has been authorized to issue not exceeding $1,250,000 of general obligation bonds of the District 
either as a single issue, or as several separate issues, for the purpose of defraying the cost of acquiring, 
constructing, renovating, installing, furnishing and equipping certain waterline improvements, sewer line 
improvements and facility repairs, and to acquire various items of equipment for the District and related 
issuance costs. For the payment of the principal of and interest on such bonds as they respectively mature 
and for the creation of such sinking fund as may be necessary therefore, the full faith, credit and taxing 
power of the District shall be irrevocably pledged, and there shall be levied annually a tax without limit on 
all taxable property in the District sufficient to pay such principal and interest and to create such sinking 
fund. 
 
 2. No election has been ordered in the District upon the question of the issuance of the 
aforesaid bonds. 
 
 Any person affected by the action aforesaid of the County Council of Anderson County may by 
action de novo instituted in the Court of Common Pleas for Anderson County within twenty (20) days 
following the last publication of this Notice but not afterwards challenge the action of the County Council of 
Anderson County. 
 
 
      COUNTY COUNCIL OF ANDERSON COUNTY 
 
 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 
 ) CERTIFIED COPY OF ORDINANCE 
COUNTY OF ANDERSON ) 
 
 
 I, the undersigned, Clerk to County Council (the “Council”) of Anderson County, South Carolina, 
DO HEREBY CERTIFY: 
  
 That the foregoing constitutes a true, correct and verbatim copy of an Ordinance which was given 
three readings on three separate days, with an interval of not less than seven days between the second and 
third readings. The original of this Ordinance is duly entered in the permanent records of minutes of 
meetings of the Council, in my custody as the Clerk to Council. 
  
 That each of said meetings was duly called, and all members of the County Council were notified of 
the same; that a quorum of the membership remained throughout the proceedings incident to the enactment 
of this Ordinance. 
  
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my Hand this 19th day of March, 2024. 
 
 
       ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
 
 
              
       Clerk to County Council, 
       Anderson County, South Carolina 
 
 
First Reading:  February 20, 2024 
Second Reading: March 5, 2024 
Third Reading:  March 19, 2024 
 
Public Hearing:  March 19, 2024 
 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-012 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING (1) THE EXECUTION AND 
DELIVERY OF A FIRST AMENDMENT TO AN EXISTING FEE IN 
LIEU OF TAX AND INCENTIVE AGREEMENT BY AND 
BETWEEN ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, AND A 
COMPANY PRESENTLY IDENTIFIED AS PROJECT BLUE 
STARR, TO EFFECT CERTAIN MODIFICATIONS THERETO 
WITH RESPECT TO CERTAIN PROPERTY NOW OR TO BE 
HEREAFTER LOCATED IN THE COUNTY; AND (2) OTHER 
MATTERS RELATING THERETO. 

WHEREAS, Anderson County, South Carolina (the “County”), acting by and through its 
County Council (the “Council”), is authorized and empowered under and pursuant to the 
provisions of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended (the “Code”), particularly 
Title 12, Chapter 44 of the Code (the “ Negotiated FILOT Act”) and Title 4, Chapter 1 of the Code, 
and in order to promote the economic development of the County and surrounding areas by 
inducing investors to locate and/or expand industrial and commercial properties (“Economic 
Development Property”) within the County, thereby expanding the tax base in the County and 
creating jobs for its citizens: (i) to enter into agreements with such investors pursuant to which 
such investors will make negotiated fee in lieu of ad valorem tax (“Negotiated FILOT”) payments 
with respect to such Economic Development Property; (ii) to permit investors to claim special 
source revenue credits against their Negoitated FILOT payments (“Special Source Credits”) to 
reimburse such investors for expenditures in connection with infrastructure serving the County 
and improved or unimproved real estate used in the operation of a manufacturing or commercial 
enterprise in order to enhance the economic development of the County; and (iii) to create, in 
conjunction with one or more other counties, a multi-county industrial park in order to afford 
certain enhanced income tax credits to such investors and to facilitate the grant of Special Source 
Credits; and 

WHEREAS, in connection with the expansion of certain facilities in the County, pursuant 
to an Ordinance duly enacted by the Council on   ,  , the County and a company 
presently identified as Project Blue Starr (the “Company”), entered into that certain Fee in Lieu of 
Tax and Incentive Agreement, dated as of   ,   (the “FILOT Agreement”), whereby 
the County agreed to provide, amongst other things, certain Negotiated FILOT (as defined in the 
FILOT Agreement) and Special Source Credits benefits with respect to certain real and/or persona 
property now or to be hereafter located in the County, all as set forth in greater detail therein (as 
further defined therein, the “Expansion Project”); and 

WHEREAS, the Company, acting for itself, one or more affiliates or other project sponsors  
proposes to invest in, or cause others to invest in, the further expansion of the Expansion Project 
at one or more locations in the County, (collectively, the “Additional Expansion Project”) and 
anticipates that, should its plan proceed as expected, it will invest at least $56,280,000, in the 
aggregate, in the Additional Expansion Project, and will create approximately 51 new, full-time 
jobs  in the County at the Expansion Project; and 



2 

WHEREAS, in consideration of such additional investment in the County by the Company, 
and in accordance with the FILOT Act, the County has determined to approve certain 
modifications to the FILOT Agreement, the specific terms and conditions of which are set forth in 
a First Amendment to Fee in Lieu of Tax and Incentive Agreement by and between the County 
and the Company (the “First Amendment”), the form of which is presented to this meeting, and 
which is to be dated as of   , 2024, or such other date as the parties thereto may agree; 
and  

WHEREAS, it appears that the First Amendment now before this meeting is in appropriate 
form and is an appropriate instrument to be executed and delivered by the County for the purposes 
intended. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council, as follows: 

Section 1. The form, provisions, terms, and conditions of the First Amendment 
presented to this meeting and filed with the Clerk to Council are hereby approved, and all of the 
provisions, terms, and conditions thereof are hereby incorporated herein by reference as if the First 
Amendment was set out in this Ordinance in its entirety.  The Chairman of the Council and/or the 
County Administrator are hereby authorized, empowered, and directed to execute, acknowledge 
and deliver the First Amendment in the name and on behalf of the County, and the Clerk to Council 
is hereby authorized and directed to attest the same, and thereupon to cause the First Amendment 
to be delivered to the Company and cause a copy of the same to be delivered to the County Auditor, 
Assessor and Treasurer.  The First Amendment is to be in substantially the form now before this 
meeting and hereby approved, or with such changes therein as shall not materially adversely affect 
the rights of the County thereunder and as shall be approved by the official or officials of the 
County executing the same, upon the advice of counsel, their execution thereof to constitute 
conclusive evidence of their approval of any and all changes or revisions therein from the form of 
the First Amendment now before this meeting. 

Section 2. The Chairman of the Council, the County Administrator and the Clerk to 
Council, for and on behalf of the County, are hereby each authorized, empowered, and directed to 
do any and all things necessary or proper to effect the execution and delivery of the First 
Amendment and the performance of all obligations of the County under and pursuant thereto. 

Section 3. The provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be separable and if 
any section, phase, or provision shall for any reason be declared by a court of competent 
jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, such declaration shall not affect the validity of the 
remainder of the sections, phases, and provisions hereunder. 

Section 4. All orders, ordinances, resolutions, and parts thereof in conflict herewith are 
to the extent of such conflict hereby repealed.  This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force 
from and after its passage and approval. 

 

[End of Ordinance] 



 
 

ORDAINED  in meeting duly assembled this   day of   , 2024. 
 
 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

By: __________________________________________ 
       Tommy Dunn, Chairman, 
       Anderson County Council 

 
[SEAL] 

Attest: 
 
 
 
By:         

Rusty Burns, County Administrator 
Anderson County, South Carolina 

 
 
 
By:         

Renee Watts, Clerk to Council 
Anderson County, South Carolina 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
By:         

Leon C. Harmon, County Attorney 
Anderson County, South Carolina 
 
 

First Reading:      , 2024 
Second Reading:       , 2024 
Public Hearing:         , 2024 
Third Reading:          , 2024 

  



 
 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 
 
COUNTY OF ANDERSON 
 
 
 I, the undersigned Clerk of the County Council of Anderson County, South Carolina, do 
hereby certify that attached hereto is a true, correct and verbatim copy of an ordinance, which was 
duly adopted by the County Council at its meeting held on      , 2024, at 
which meeting a quorum of members of the County Council were at all times present and voted, 
and an original of which ordinance is filed in the permanent records of the County Council. 
 
 WITNESS MY HAND this    day of   , 2024 
 
 
 
 
      
Renee Watts, Clerk to Council 
Anderson County, South Carolina 
 



 

 
 

DRAFT 03/01/2024 

 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO 

FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AND INCENTIVE AGREEMENT 

 

by and between 

 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA,  

 
and 

 
PROJECT BLUE STARR 

 

 

Dated as of     , 2024 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

This First Amendment pertains to that certain Fee in Lieu of Tax and Incentive Agreement 
dated as of      ,   by and among Anderson County, South 
Carolina, and a company presently identified as Project Blue Starr. 



 

1 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AND INCENTIVE AGREEMENT 

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AND INCENTIVE 
AGREEMENT (the “First Amendment”), dated as of    , 2024 (the “Effective Date”), 
by and between ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA (the “County”), a body politic 
and corporate and a political subdivision of the State of South Carolina, and a company presently 
identified as PROJECT BLUE STARR, a        (the “Company”). 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

WHEREAS, the County, acting by and through its County Council (the “Council”), is 
authorized and empowered under and pursuant to the provisions of the Code of Laws of South 
Carolina 1976, as amended through the date hereof (the “Code”), particularly Title 12, Chapter 44 
thereof (the “Negotiated FILOT Act”) and Title 4, Chapter 1 of the Code, and in order to promote 
the economic development of the County and surrounding areas by inducing investors to locate 
and/or expand industrial and commercial properties (“Economic Development Property”) within 
the County, thereby expanding the tax base in the County and creating jobs for its citizens: (i) to 
enter into agreements with such investors pursuant to which such investors will make negotiated 
fee in lieu of ad valorem tax (“Negotiated FILOT”) payments with respect to such Economic 
Development Property; (ii) to permit investors to claim special source revenue credits against their 
Negotiated FILOT payments (“Special Source Credits”) to reimburse such investors for 
expenditures in connection with infrastructure serving the County and improved or unimproved 
real estate used in the operation of a manufacturing or commercial enterprise in order to enhance 
the economic development of the County; and (iii) to create, in conjunction with one or more other 
counties, a multi-county industrial park in order to afford certain enhanced income tax credits to 
such investors and to facilitate the grant of Special Source Credits; and 

WHEREAS, in connection with the expansion of certain facilities in the County, and 
pursuant to an Ordinance duly enacted by the Council on      ,  , the 
County and the Company, entered into that certain Fee in Lieu of Tax and Incentive Agreement 
dated as of     ,   (the “FILOT Agreement”), whereby the County agreed to 
provide, amongst other things, certain Negotiated FILOT and Special Source Credits benefits to 
the Company with respect to certain real and/or personal property now or to be hereafter located 
in the County, as set forth therein (as further defined therein, the “Expansion Project”); and 

WHEREAS, the Company, acting for itself, one or more affiliates or other project sponsors 
(the “Company”) proposes to invest in, or cause others to invest in, the further expansion of the 
Expansion Project at one or more locations in the County, (collectively, the “Additional Expansion 
Project”) and anticipates that, should its plan proceed as expected, it will invest at least 
$56,280,000, in the aggregate, in the Additional Expansion Project, and will create  approximately 
51 new, full-time jobs in the County at the Expansion Project; and 

WHEREAS, in consideration of such additional investment in the Expansion Project by 
the Company, and in accordance with Sections 12-44-40(K) of the Negotiated FILOT Act, 
respectively, the County has determined to approve certain modifications to the FILOT 
Agreement, all as evidenced, memorialized, ratified, and detailed more particularly herein; and 



 

2 
 

WHEREAS, the Council authorized the modifications to the FILOT Agreement referenced 
above and set forth in this First Amendment, and authorized the execution and delivery of this 
First Amendment, pursuant to Ordinance No.   duly enacted by the Council on  
   , 2024. 

  
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals which are incorporated 

herein by reference and other lawful consideration, and respective representations and agreements 
hereinafter contained, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the County 
and the Company agree as follows:  

Section 1.  Definitions.  Defined terms utilized herein and not otherwise defined herein 
shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the FILOT Agreement. 

Section 2.  Amendment of FILOT Agreement.  The FILOT Agreement is hereby 
amended as follows: 

(a) Section 1.01 is hereby amended as follows: 

i. The definition of “Additional Expansion Project” is hereby included and 
inserted to read as follows: 

“Additional Expansion Project” shall mean that portion of the Expansion 
Project placed in service within the portion of the Investment Period 
comprising the Additional Expansion Project Compliance Period. 

ii. The definition of “Additional Expansion Project Compliance Period” is 
hereby included and inserted to read as follows: 

“Additional Expansion Project Compliance Period” shall mean that portion 
of the Investment Period commencing on January 1, 2023 and ending at the 
end of the Investment Period, which such end date the County and Company 
agree and acknowledge to be December 31, 2027. 

iii. The definition of “Additional Expansion Project Investment Requirement” 
is hereby included and inserted to read as follows: 

“Additional Expansion Project Investment Requirement” shall mean 
investment in the Additional Expansion Project, within the Additional 
Expansion Project Compliance Period, by the Company and any other 
Sponsors or Sponsor Affiliates, in the aggregate, of at least $56,280,000 
(without regard to depreciation or other diminution in value). 

iv. The definition of “Additional Expansion Project Jobs Requirement” is 
hereby included and inserted to read as follows: 

“Additional Expansion Project Jobs Requirement” shall mean the creation 
at the Expansion Project of at least 51 new, full-time jobs by the Company 
and any other Sponsors or Sponsor Affiliates, in the aggregate, within a 



 

3 
 

period commencing on January 1, 2024 and ending at the end of the 
Additional Expansion Project Compliance Period. 

v. The definition of “Agreement” is hereby amended to read as follows: 

“Agreement” shall mean this Fee in Lieu of Tax and Incentive Agreement as 
originally executed and from time to time supplemented or amended, as 
permitted herein, including, without limitation, as amended by that certain 
First Amendment to Fee in Lieu of Tax and Incentive Agreement by and 
between the County and the Company dated as of     , 2024. 

(b) Section 3.02(a)(i) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

(a) As an additional incentive to induce the Company to locate the 
Expansion Project in the County, and as reimbursement for investment in Special 
Source Improvements and subject to the requirements of the Special Source Act, 
the County does hereby agree that the Company and each other Sponsor or Sponsor 
Affiliate (each a “Credit Eligible Entity”) shall each be entitled to claim and 
receive, and the County shall provide, Special Source Credits against each annual 
Negotiated FILOT Payment due hereunder from each Credit Eligible Entity with 
respect to the Expansion Project, as follows: 

(i) Upon satisfaction, within the Investment Period, of each 
investment threshold, and within the period commencing on January 1, 
2012 and ending at the end of the Investment Period, of each corresponding 
new, full-time job creation threshold, set forth below, and subject to the 
provisions of Sections 3.02(b) through (d) hereof, Special Source Credits 
in the corresponding percentage amounts set forth below: 

(1) With respect to each Negotiated FILOT Payment beginning with 
the initial Negotiated FILOT Payment due hereunder and continuing 
through and including the Negotiated FILOT Payment due with respect to 
tax year 2023 (i.e., Negotiated FILOT Payment due for Expansion Project 
property placed in service as of the end of the Property Tax Year ending on 
December 31, 2022 to be paid on or about January 15, 2024), and 
commencing with the Negotiated FILOT Payment due during such payment 
period with respect to Expansion Project property placed in service as of the 
end of the first Property Tax Year in which such investment and job creation 
threshold has been satisfied: 



 

4 
 

  

(2) With respect to each Negotiated FILOT Payment beginning with 
the Negotiated FILOT Payment due with respect to tax year 2024 (i.e., 
Negotiated FILOT Payment due for Expansion Project property placed in 
service as of the end of the Property Tax Year ending on December 31, 2023 
to be paid on or about January 15, 2025) and continuing through the 
remainder of the Negotiated FILOT Payments due hereunder, and 
commencing with the Negotiated FILOT Payments due during such 
payment period with respect to Expansion Project property placed in service 
as of the end of the first Property Tax Year in which such investment and 
job creation threshold has been satisfied: 

 

 
 
Provided, however, that should either the Additional Expansion Project 

Special 
Source 
Credits 

Tier 

Investment Thresholds 
(without regard to depreciation, 
assessment or other diminution 

in value) 

Job Creation 
Thresholds 
(created in 

the County) 

Percentage of 
Negotiated 

FILOT 
Payments 

Provided as 
Special Source 

Credits 
 

Tier 1 $150,000,000 - $500,000,000 125 47% 

Tier 2 $500,000,001 - $750,000,000 300 57% 

Tier 3 $750,000,001 - $1,000,000,000 300 62% 

Tier 4 $1,000,000,001 and above 300 67% 

Special 
Source 
Credits 

Tier 

Investment Thresholds 
(without regard to depreciation, 
assessment or other diminution 

in value) 

Job Creation 
Thresholds 
(created in 

the County) 

Percentage of 
Negotiated 

FILOT 
Payments 

Provided as 
Special Source 

Credits 
 

Tier 1 $150,000,000 - $500,000,000 125 55% 

Tier 2 $500,000,001 - $750,000,000 300 65% 

Tier 3 $750,000,001 - $1,000,000,000 300 70% 

Tier 4 $1,000,000,001 and above 300 75% 



 

5 
 

Investment Requirement or the Additional Expansion Project Jobs 
Requirement not be satisfied by the end of the Additional Expansion Project 
Compliance Period, the applicable Special Source Credits percentages set 
forth in the table above in Section 3.02(a)(i)(2) hereof shall be 
automatically modified to be equal to  the Special Source Credits 
percentages set forth in the table above in Section 3.02(a)(i)(1) hereof, 
prospectively,  commencing with the Negotiated FILOT Payment due with 
respect to tax year 2028 (i.e., Negotiated FILOT Payment due for Expansion 
Project property placed in service as of the end of the Property Tax Year 
ending on December 31, 2027 and to be paid on or about January 15, 2029; 
provided, further, however, that notwithstanding the immediately foregoing 
provision, in the event that the new, full-time job level set forth in the 
Additional Expansion Project Jobs Requirement is satisfied on or before 
December 31, 2029, the Special Source Credits percentages set forth in the 
table above in Section 3.02(a)(i)(2) hereof shall automatically reapply 
commencing with the Negotiated FILOT Payment due with respect to the 
tax year corresponding to the Property Tax Year in which such satisfaction 
occurs (e.g., if such satisfaction occurs in the Property Tax Year ending 
December 31, 2028, the Special Source Credits percentages set forth in the 
table above in Section 3.02(a)(i)(2) hereof would automatically reapply 
commencing with the Negotiated FILOT Payment due with respect to tax 
year 2029 for Expansion Project property placed in service as of the end of 
the Property Tax Year ending on December 31, 2028 to be paid on or about 
January 15, 2029). 
 

(c) Section 9.03(e) is hereby amended to read as follows:  

if to the Company: 
      
 Attention: Tax Incentives Manager 
      
      
 Phone:     
 Fax:     
 
with a copy (which shall not constitute notice) to: 
 
 Maynard Nexsen PC 
 Tushar V. Chikhliker, Esq. 
 P.O. Box 2426 
 1230 Main Street, Suite 700 
 Columbia, South Carolina 29201 
 Phone: 803-771-8900 
 Fax: 803-253-8277 
  



 

6 
 

Section 3.  Remaining Terms and Provisions.  Except as expressly amended hereby, 
the terms and provisions of the FILOT Agreement shall remain unchanged and in full force and 
effect. 

Section 4.  Entire Understanding.  The FILOT Agreement, as amended by this First 
Amendment, expresses the entire understanding and all agreements of the parties hereto pertaining 
to the matters set forth herein and therein and neither party hereto has made or shall be bound by 
any agreement or any representation to the other party which is not expressly set forth in the FILOT 
Agreement, as amended by this First Amendment, or in certificates delivered in connection with 
the execution and delivery hereof. 

Section 5.  Severability.  In the event that any clause or provision of this First 
Amendment shall be held to be invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, the invalidity of 
such clause or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions hereof. 

Section 6.  Multiple Counterparts.  This First Amendment may be executed in multiple 
counterparts, each of which shall be an original but all of which shall constitute but one and the 
same instrument. 

 

[Signature Pages Follow]



 

[Signature Page to First Amendment to Fee in Lieu of Tax and Incentive Agreement] 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties hereto, each after due authorization, have executed 
this First Amendment to Fee in Lieu of Tax and Incentive Agreement to be effective as of the date 
first written above. 

 
 ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
 
 
 By:_______________________________________ 

       Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
       Anderson County Council 

[SEAL] 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By:_____________________________________ 
      Renee Watts, Clerk to County Council  
      Anderson County, South Carolina 

 
 
 
 
PROJECT BLUE STARR 

 
 
 
  By:_____________________________________ 
  Name:__________________________________ 
  Title: ___________________________________ 
 

 
 
 

 
 













MEMORANDUM 
ANDERSON COUNTY DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 

DATE: January 10, 2024 

TO: Renee Watts 
Clerk to Council 

FROM: Tim Cartee 
Land Development Administrator 

CC: Holt Hopkins, Alesia Hunter, Matt Hogan 

SUBJECT: Parkview Glen Subdivision Phase II, III & IV 

Based on the recommendation of the Roads and Bridges Department, would you please place on 
the next County Council Agenda for consideration of acceptance for the following road into the 
County Maintenance System. 

This will add 3,701 feet of paved roads to the county maintenance system. 

Developer: 
Location:  
County Council District: 
Roads: 

Rogers Road Venture, LLC 
Rogers Road 
7
Walking Stick Way, Red Canoe Lane, Water Gap Drive 

Please feel free to contact me at (260-4719) if you need more information. 

Tommy Dunn 
Chairman, District 5 

Brett Sanders 
V. Chairman, District 4

John B. Wright, Jr. 
Council District 1 

Glenn Davis 
Council District 2 

Greg Elgin 
Council District 3 

Jimmy Davis 
Council District 6 

Cindy Wilson 
Council District 7 

Renee Watts 
Clerk to Council 

Rusty Burns | County Administrator 
rburns@andersoncountysc.org 

401 E Rivers Street, Anderson, SC 29621 | www.andersoncountysc.org 

mailto:rburns@andersoncountysc.org
mailto:rburns@andersoncountysc.org
http://www.andersoncountysc.org/


                 
                MEMORANDUM 
                                     ANDERSON COUNTY ROADS AND BRIDGES 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        

Tommy Dunn 
Chairman, District 5 

 

Brett Sanders 
V. Chairman, District 4 

 

John B. Wright 
Council District 1 

 

Glenn Davis 
Council District 2 

Greg Elgin 
Council District 3  

 

Jimmy Davis 
Council District 6 
 

Cindy Wilson 
Council District 7 

 

Renee Watts 
Clerk to Council 

                                                                                                                                                                                Roads and Bridges 

1428 Pearman Dairy Road 

Anderson, S.C. 29625  

864-260-4190 

 
 

 

Rusty Burns | County Administrator 
rburns@andersoncountysc.org 

DATE:             1/9/2024 

 

TO:   Matt Hogan 

                                    Roads and Bridges Manager 
 

FROM:   Norman McGill    

Roadway Management Supervisor 

 

CC:                             Holt Hopkins 

    

 

     SUBJECT:                     Parkview Glen Subdivision Phases 2,3, and 4 

 
To the best of my ability, I certify that there are no known drainage issues in Parkview Glen Subdivision 

Phases 2, 3, and 4 on the roads listed below. All drainage facilities and roadways within the proposed 

county right of way meet the county standards that were approved by the Planning Commission from the 

preliminary plat. The roads of this phase of the subdivision are now eligible to be considered for 

acceptance into the county maintenance system. This will add 3,701 feet of paved roads to the county 

maintenance system. 

 

 

 

District: 7 

 Location: Parkview Glen Subdivision 

  

 Roads: (P-06-0177) Walking Stick Way, (P-06-0187) Red Canoe Lane, and (P-06-0188) Water Gap Drive 









May 14, 2024 

Sponsorship Levels

"All In" Annual Corporate Sponsor | $2000 (July 2024-June 2025) 
A $1000 scholarship that will be awarded to a Clemson student from Anderson County
Recognition on website & emails from the Anderson Area Clemson Club
Sponsor at SOCKO event which includes:

Banner at venue
Program & Slide Show recognition
1 Reserved table (up to 8 tickets) *must confirm attendance prior to event

Electric SOCKO Sponsor | $1500 *1 available
Presenting SOCKO Sponsor
Name on all posters, flyers, ads, emails, social media
Banner at venue
Program & Slide Show recognition
1 Reserved table (up to 8 tickets) *must confirm attendance prior to event

Orange SOCKO Sponsor | $500
Banner at venue
Slide Show recognition
1 Reserved table (up to 8 tickets) *must confirm attendance prior to event

Tiger SOCKO Sponsor |  $350
1 Reserved table (up to 8 tickets) *must confirm attendance prior to event

Cub SOCKO Sponsor | $300
Banner at venue
Slide Show recognition

SOCKO Silent Auction Donor
Donate an item or gift card to our silent auction, which benefits our scholarship fund!

The Anderson Area Clemson Club (AACC) is under the umbrella of the Clemson University Alumni
Association, a 501(c)3 nonprofit organization. All proceeds from the event will benefit our Anderson

Area Clemson Club Scholarship Fund for students attending Clemson University from Anderson
County.

Federal Tax ID# 82-3348437

6:00pmSolid Orange Clemson Kick-off Fundraiser The Bleckley Station



2024 SOCKO Sponsor/Donation Form

Business or Donor Name:

Contact Name:

Contact Phone Number:

Contact Email:

Contact Address:

Sponsorship:         Yes           No

             If Yes, Level:

              *Please submit logo to aaclemsonclub@gmail.com by April 14, 2024

                 Please invoice me for the amount of $

                 I am enclosing payment for the total amount of $

                 Card payments available upon request with an additional processing

                 fee. Please reach back out to your AACC board member contact.

                     

Silent Auction Donation:          Yes             No

             If Yes, Item(s):

             If Yes, Value:

Form & Checks can be mailed to:
Anderson Area Clemson Club
165 Spyglass Ln. Anderson, SC 29625

OR Email Form to: aaclemsonclub@gmail.com or AACC Board Member Contact

*Please note that a copy of this form can be used for tax purposes
*Federal Tax ID# 82-3348437

ALL SPONSORSHIPS ARE DUE BY APRIL 14, 2024
ALL SILENT AUCTION DONATIONS ARE DUE BY MAY 7, 2024




















































	Agenda CCM March 19, 2024
	2a Resolution 2024-012 Jason Phillips
	2b Resolution 2024-013 Celina Weems Thomas Watson
	2c Resolution 2024-014 Powdersville Basketball
	Minutes CCM 02062024
	5a Ordinance 2024-005 Hope Missions Lease
	5b Ordinance 2024-011 Bond Homeland Park Water District
	6a Ordinance 2024-012 Project Blue Starr
	9a Bid #24-022 ACTC
	10a Road Acceptance Parkview Glen
	11a Appropriation Request Anderson Area Clemson Club
	12a Building & Codes Report
	12b Budget Transfers
	12c Paving
	12d Special Projects



